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Delivering Nestlé products in the 
early 1900s, in what was then 
known as Ceylon
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Nestlé Worldwide

How our passion for nutrition inspired 
‘Good Food, Good Life’ 
It’s the mid 1860’s in Switzerland and a premature baby cannot breastfeed. This is 
worrying in an era when many infants who cannot breastfeed die of malnutrition. 
Our founder, pharmacist Henri Nestlé, learns about the case and feeds the child 
his new Farine Lactée infant food. It is the only product the boy can digest, and 
he survives.

Word of Nestlé’s success spreads rapidly, and through determination, commitment 
and a pioneering spirit he builds a thriving business. His life-saving innovation is 
the model for all products that follow throughout Nestlé’s history. 

Nestlé today 

People around the world now consume more than one billion servings of Nestlé 
products per day. The company operates in over 197 countries and employs almost 
340,000 people. It’s a far cry from the small-scale business that Henri Nestlé 

founded in Vevey, Switzerland. But Nestlé still embraces his values, his famous 
‘Nest’ logo, and his passion for nutrition. 

Leading nutrition expertise 
We have continued to provide innovative, science-based products and services 
that enhance the quality of life. 

Nestlé has the largest food and nutrition research organisation in the world 
today, which develops and applies scientific and nutritional know-how to all our 
products. We continue to build on our R&D leadership with a number of studies 
on areas relevant to our business. For example, two ongoing Nestlé studies – the 
Kids Nutrition and Health Study (KNHS) and Feeding Infants and Toddlers Study 
(FITS) – provides snapshots of eating patterns, nutrient intakes, child lifestyle and 
behavioral factors, and healthy weight indicators of children up to 12 years of age. 
We use this research to improve the nutritional profiles of our products. It is this 
unique R&D strength that helps deliver the main benefits of our products – taste, 
nutrition, quality and safety.
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Celebrating 150 Years 

One other benefit that Nestlé products have always offered is convenience. This 
became especially important after more women entered the workplace, and 
people demanded foods that were easy to prepare.

One of our first products was Milkmaid, which we sold as a safe, life-long 
alternative to fresh milk. In 1916, we acquired the Norwegian dairy company Egron 
which had patented a spray-drying process for producing milk powder – a product 
we soon started selling. 

By 1938, people could ‘start the day with a Nescafé, the world’s first great-tasting 
instant coffee, simply by adding hot water. By 1957, they could finish the day with 
Maggi pasta ‘ready meals’ in cans, which were hugely successful. Our skill in 
anticipating and meeting consumer needs, combined with our passion for quality, 
has earned us recognition as the trusted leader in Nutrition, Health and Wellness. 

Enhancing product superiority 
Today Nestlé’s global business spans food and beverages, waters, dairy, 
confectionery, petcare, even skincare. In 2011 the company extended its 

leadership in Nutrition, Health and Wellness by creating Nestlé Health Science, 
to develop nutritional healthcare products that target optimal brain health, for 
example, or healthy ageing.

Such innovations will help Nestlé address the global challenges of malnutrition, 
growing and ageing populations and obesity. 

The future 
2016 will mark the beginning of our next 150 years, and the opportunity to 
reconfirm and extend our commitment to enhance the quality of life further. 
Raising our game in this regard is precisely what leadership in Nutrition, Health 
and Wellness is all about. 

Nestlé has been, and will always be, passionate about nutrition. 
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Our passion for nutrition 
Our global expertise in nutrition has benefited our operations in Sri Lanka for over 
a century, driving the high level of quality upheld by our state-of-the-art factory in 
Kurunegala when making the Nestlé products you know and love. 

Enhancing product superiority 
This same passion for nutrition underpins a commitment to continuously improve 
our products' nutritional profile.  

While Sri Lanka enjoys a significantly better nutritional status than most in the 
region, 23% of Sri Lankan children under five are underweight, 33% are deficient 
in iron and 29% are deficient in Vitamin A. 5% of adults between 30 to 39 years 
also suffer from obesity (source: National Nutrition & Micronutrient Survey – 2012 
- Medical Research Institute, Ministry Of Health). 

Using our global R&D expertise, we are working to ensure that our products 
offer a superior nutritional profile to help meet local nutritional needs. We are 
reducing salt, sugar and saturated fats in our products, and fortifying them with 
micronutrients, vegetables and wholegrains where applicable.

Nestlé in Sri Lanka

Fortified with B vitamins and minerals

8 vitamins and minerals for optimum 
energy release

Fortified with calcium and vitamin A, and 
enhanced with added vegetables

Reduced sugar
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60/40+: Catering to local palettes
At the core of ensuring that our products meet the needs and preferences of local 
consumers is our unique 60/40+ programme, the largest of its kind ever to be 
deployed in the industry, which requires at least 60% of a large consumer sample 
to prefer our Nestlé product in a blind taste test against our main competitors.

Secondly where relevant, it requires the product to offer an additional nutritional 
advantage based on criteria recommended by world renowned nutrition and health 
authorities and local public regulatory priorities.

By participating in the programme, our Sri Lankan consumers have helped shape 
our products to suit their palettes.

Our Passion for Nutrition

Fortified with vitamin A and iron 

Natural goodness of cereals with added vitamins 
and minerals Fortified with iron
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Promoting healthy diets and lifestyles
We place a strong focus on helping to improve understanding of nutrition, because 
many non-communicable diseases often originate from a lack of awareness of 
healthy diets and lifestyles. 

The Nestlé Healthy Kids Programme
The Nestlé Healthy Kids Programme, which partners with the Education 
Ministry’s “Poshanayai Suwadiviyai” (Nutrition for a Healthy Life) campaign, 
focuses on educating school-age children on nutrition and health. It is taught in 
schools as an extra-curricular subject by Ministry educationists.  

The programme also has a separate component called "Kids Athletics" that creates 
awareness about the importance of physical activity. It holds athletic training and 
awareness building events across the country to encourage children to be more 
physically active. 

Empowering Sri Lankan mothers with scientific, nutritional information
Our Nestlé Start Healthy, Stay Healthy programme, a non-commercial activity, 
partners with local healthcare professionals to educate mothers who do not have 

access to expert advice on science and nutrition. It aims to make good nutrition a 
way of life and pave the way for a healthier future generation.

Sharing science-based information with local healthcare professionals
Our Nestlé Nutrition Institute is committed to empowering local healthcare 
professionals with the latest science-based information. Organising scientific 
workshops and similar events, its aim is to support continuing education amongst 
local healthcare professionals.

Encouraging an active lifestyle through school sports and national 
marathons
We strive to instill an interest in sports among youth for reasons of health, wellness, 
discipline and leadership. By supporting school sports events through our Milo 
brand and national marathons through our Nestomalt brand, we have been able to 
encourage hundreds of thousands of adults and children to be physically active, 
and support many promising athletes in their careers.

Nestlé in Sri Lanka
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Empowering people to make informed choices 
about their food and beverages
Our packaging also plays an important role in enhancing nutritional understanding. 
We have a number of tools on pack that offer portion advice, information on 
nutritional value and calorie content.

The Nestlé Nutritional Compass
People are often confused by the sheer number and variety of different labeling 
systems. This is why we offer transparent and easy to understand nutrition 
information on all our packs. This approach is called the Nestlé Nutritional 
Compass®.

Beyond the label
We are now expanding the use of the Nutritional Compass to include a QR code 
on packs. Consumers can scan it with a smartphone to access useful, fact based 
information that they would not ordinarily find on the label; such as dietary and 
serving advice for the product as well as its social and environmental impact.

Nestlé Nutri-Corners
The Nestlé Nutri-Corner is an educational initiative that continues to be implemented 
across the island in areas with high footfall. Qualified nutritionists provide much 

needed advice on the importance of having a balanced diet and healthy lifestyle to 
thousands of people around the island every year. We also help them assess their 
nutritional status through BMI (Body Mass Index), body fat, waist circumference, 
random blood sugar and blood pressure check-ups along with diet counseling.

Wellness campaigns
Partnering with leading health organisations for public health awareness campaigns, 
we help educate people about the risks of noncommunicable diseases along with 
tips for prevention. In 2015, we launched a campaign for World Heart Day together 
with the Sri Lanka Medical Association (SLMA). We also sponsored health walks, 
runs and fitness programmes to encourage people to live an active lifestyle.

Contribution 
Looking back, we can be proud of what we have achieved. 2016 not only marks 
150 years for Nestlé worldwide but also 110 years for Nestlé in Sri Lanka. That is 
more than 100 years of passion for nutrition; of bringing Good Food, Good Life to 
millions of consumers in the country. 

Our Passion for Nutrition
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1905

Nestlé merges with Anglo-Swiss to 
form the Nestlé & Anglo-Swiss Milk 
Company, known today as the Nestlé 
Group.

Over several years, the company 
expands its range to include 
unsweetened condensed milk and 
sterilised milk, and gradually starts 
using overseas subsidiaries - with 
a sales network that spans Africa, 
Asia, Latin America and Australia – to 
become a global dairy company 

1904

Nestlé begins selling chocolate for 
the first time. Henri Nestlé plays a 
key role in developing the world’s 
first milk chocolate, when he 
supplies his neighbour Daniel Peter 
with condensed milk. Peter uses 
the milk to develop the world's first 
commercial milk chocolate product

1916

Nestlé acquires Norwegian dairy 
company Egron, which has patented 
a spray-drying process for producing 
milk powder – a product we soon start 
selling

1866

Our founder Henri Nestlé develops 
a breakthrough infant food 
‘Farine Lactée’ (‘flour with milk’) 
in Vevey, Switzerland. It combines 
cow’s milk, wheat flour and sugar, and 
Nestlé develops it for consumption by 
infants who cannot be breastfed, to 
tackle high mortality rates. Around this 
time he starts using the now iconic 
‘Nest’ logo

1867

Our history begins in 1866 when, 
using abundant supplies of fresh 
Swiss milk, the Anglo-Swiss 
Condensed Milk Company starts 
supplying Europe’s industrial towns 
with condensed milk under the 
Milkmaid brand

Nestlé starts trading in Sri Lanka 
with Milkmaid condensed milk and 
Lactogen infant food products

1906
Nestlé Timeline: 1866-today
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1934

Malted chocolate drink Milo is 
launched in Australia, and its success 
means it is later exported for sale in 
other markets, including Sri Lanka 

1938

Nescafé is launched as a ‘powdered 
extract of pure coffee’ that retains 
coffee’s natural flavour, but can be 
prepared by simply adding hot water 

The product is the brainchild of Max 
Morgenthaler, who begins work 
on it in 1929, when the Brazilian 
government asks Nestlé to find an 
outlet for its huge coffee surplus 

1947

Nestlé merges with Swiss company 
Alimentana, which produces Maggi 
soups, bouillons and seasonings, 
and is renamed Nestlé Alimentana. 
Alimentana’s history dates back to 
1884, when Julius Maggi developed 
a protein-rich dried soup to tackle 
malnutrition 

1948

In the US, Nestlé launches a soluble 
tea, Nestea, which is manufactured 
using the same method as Nescafé, 
and can be served both hot or cold 

1950
To strengthen Nestlé’s operations 
in Sri Lanka, a company subsidiary, 
Nassau Bahama Islands, is registered 
as Nestlé Products (Ceylon) Ltd

Ceylon Nutritional Foods (Pvt) Ltd 
– the successor to Nestlé Products 
(Ceylon) Ltd – is incorporated, selling 
branded food products under the 
Nestlé, Crosse & Blackwell, Lactogen, 
Milkmaid and Maggi trademarks 

Nestomalt, a malted milk-food drink 
developed by Nestlé Australia, is later 
introduced to the island. The product 
fast becomes a household favourite 
in Sri Lanka, where Sri Lankans not 
only consume the product on its own 
but also mix it together with their tea. 
Nestomalt is only manufactured in 
Sri Lanka today and remains Nestlé 
Lanka’s biggest brand   

1964

Nestlé Timeline: 1866-today
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1977

Renamed Nestlé S.A, the company 
continues its diversification strategy, 
buying US pharmaceutical and 
ophthalmic products manufacturer 
Alcon Laboratories

ALCON

1980

Nestlé launches a dairy development 
programme in Sri Lanka to help rural 
farmers produce more milk of better 
quality, honouring its commitment 
to the government to help develop 
Sri Lanka’s dairy industry

Nestlé SA and the Government 
of Sri Lanka form a joint venture – 
International Dairy Products Ltd (IDPL) 
– to use local milk for condensed milk 
production. IDPL’s factory is based in 
Polonnaruwa 

Nestlé and L’Oreal establish 
Galderma as a joint venture active 
in dermatology. The World Health 
Assembly adopts the WHO code on 
breast-milk substitutes, and Nestlé is 
one of the first companies to develop 
policies based on it and apply them 
across its business 

The company Nestlé Lanka Limited is 
incorporated in Sri Lanka

GALDERMA
1981

1983

Reinforcing roots in the island, Nestlé 
Lanka Limited becomes a public 
quoted company, with 5,000 local 
shareholders. Nestlé starts building 
its first multi-product manufacturing 
facility in Sri Lanka, located in 
Kurunegala, with an investment of 
Rs. 500 million 

1984

Nestlé begins commercial production 
in its Kurunegala factory. Its opening 
is a landmark event in the country 
and the factory is inaugurated by 
Sri Lanka’s first Executive President, 
His Excellency J.R. Jayawardene. 
Today this state-of-the-art factory 
produces more than 90% of the 
Nestlé products sold in Sri Lanka  

1974

For the first time, Nestlé diversifies 
beyond food and drink, becoming 
a minority shareholder in global 
cosmetics company L’Oréal 

L’ORÉAL

Nestlé Timeline: 1866-today
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1986

The Nespresso story begins with a 
simple idea: enable anyone to create a 
perfect cup of coffee, just like a skilled 
barrista

A wholly owned subsidiary of 
Nestlé Lanka Limited – Eastern Food 
Specialties Ltd – is incorporated in 
Sri Lanka to manufacture coconut milk 
powder under the Maggi brand at the 
Kurunegala factory 

1988

Nestlé buys UK confectionery 
company Rowntree Mackintosh, 
adding brands like KitKat, After Eight 
and Smarties to its portfolio. 

1992

Nestlé develops its position in mineral 
waters by acquiring France’s Perrier 
Group. Nestlé Sources Internationales 
is created as a separate waters 
business in 1993, and is renamed 
Nestlé Waters in 2002

With the increasing success of Maggi 
Coconut Milk Powder, Nestlé Lanka 
dedicates a facility at its Kurunegala 
factory to exclusively manufacture the 
product. Today Nestlé Lanka is the only 
manufacturer of coconut milk powder 
in the Nestlé Group and is among 
the largest exporters of coconut milk 
powder in the world 

1993

1997
New CEO Peter Brabeck-Letmathe 
sees growth potential in personalised 
nutrition. He announces Nestlé’s 
position as the leader in ‘Nutrition, 
Health and Wellness’, as the 
millennium approaches

1998
An Ultra-Heat Treatment (UHT) plant is 
opened in the Polonnaruwa factory to 
produce Nestomalt, Milo and Nespray 
Ready-to-Drink (RTD) products

Nestlé buys US pet food business 
Ralston Purina, and merges it with 
Nestlé Friskies Petcare to establish 
the new market leader in pet care, 
Nestlé Purina Petcare

2001

Nestlé Timeline: 1866-today
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Nestlé creates a foodservice business 
division named Nestlé Professional, 
which develops products and services 
for culinary professionals

2008

A growing focus on medical nutrition 
leads Nestlé to acquire Novartis 
Medical Nutrition. It also buys baby 
food company Gerber and Swiss 
mineral waters concern, Sources 
Minérales Henniez

Complying with new regulations – 
section 485 (6) of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 – Nestlé Lanka Limited 
is registered as Nestlé Lanka PLC 

Nestlé’s operations at its Polonnaruwa 
factory are relocated to its Kurunegala 
factory 

20072005

Nestlé Nutrition, Nestlé’s business 
division that caters to specific infant, 
child and maternal nutrition needs, is 
launched in Sri Lanka 

Nestlé Timeline: 1866-today

2004
Nestlé gains full ownership of 
International Dairy Products Ltd in 
Sri Lanka

2002

After expanding its ice-cream business 
in the 1990s, Nestlé acquires the 
licensing rights to premium producer 
Häagen-Dazs in the US and Canada, 
and buys Mövenpick and Dreyer’s 
Grand Ice Cream in 2003 

Nestlé announces its Creating Shared 
Value approach to doing business, 
where any action for shareholders 
must also create value for the 
communities Nestlé operates in, and 
for wider society.

In Sri Lanka, Ceylon Nutritional Foods 
(Pvt) Ltd, International Dairy Products 
Ltd and Eastern Food Specialties Ltd 
merge with Nestlé Lanka Limited to 
form one entity 

2006

Protect the future

Laws, business principles
codes of conduct

Nutrition, water, rural development,
our focus areas 

16



2014

With the creation of Nestlé Skin 
Health, Nestlé takes full control of the 
Galderma dermatology joint venture it 
created with L’Oréal in 1981

2015

Nestlé enters the super-premium 
global chocolate category with Cailler

2013
Nestlé Health Science buys US-based 
medical foods company Pamlab, 
which specialises in medical nutrition 
for patients with conditions including 
mild cognitive impairment and 
depression 

2016

Nestlé celebrates 110 years in 
Sri Lanka and 150 years worldwide.

2012
Nestlé acquires Wyeth Nutrition, 
formerly Pfizer Nutrition, to strengthen 
its position in infant nutrition

Nestlé Health Science and the Nestlé 
Institute of Health Sciences are 
established, to research science-
based nutritional products aimed 
at preventing and treating chronic 
medical conditions 

2011

Nestlé Timeline: 1866-today

The Nestlé Nutrition Institute, 
a non-commercial entity that 
shares science-based information 
and education with healthcare 
professionals, is launched in Sri Lanka 

2009

17



Inaugurated by Sri Lanka’s first Executive President,
His Excellency J.R. Jayawardene 

Nestlé in Sri Lanka: Then

Over three decades ago, the remote 
village of Makandura, Pannala, located 
in the Kurunegala district, witnessed 
foundations being placed in a bare land, 
to commence the construction of what 
is presently known as the Nestlé Lanka 
Kurunegala factory.

Today, this manufacturing facility 
produces more than 90% of Nestlé’s 
food and beverage products in Sri Lanka, 
playing a vital role in establishing Nestlé 

Lanka as a leading Nutrition, Health and 
Wellness company.

In addition to manufacturing products of 
the highest quality, our factory provides 
a livelihood to approximately 900 
families through direct employment 
whilst positively impacting the 
livelihood of close to 25,000 farming 
families through our  procurement of 
fresh milk and coconut.

More than 
30 years of 

manufacturing 
high quality, 

nutritious 
products 
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Nestlé in Sri Lanka: Now
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2015 Highlights

Financial Performance

    Rs. 2.6 billion
contributed to the coconut industry as 
payment for procuring fresh coconuts 

    Rs. 3.6 billion
paid to nearly 20,000 local dairy farmers for 
fresh milk  

Contribution to the Rural Economy

Revenue

Rs. 35.9 billion   + 9%
Contribution to  Exchequer 

Rs. 6.7 billion

Earnings per Share

Rs. 76.77
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2015 Highlights

    44,000
Children encouraged to be more physically 
active via Nestlé Healthy Kids athletic events

    360 million 
Servings of micronutrient fortified Nestlé 
products

    2,850
Children educated on nutrition and health 
through our Nestlé Healthy Kids Programme 

    25,000
People provided with free nutritional 
counselling

Strengthening our Nutrition, Health and Wellness credentials

Lowering our Environmental Footprint

Saving water by

    39% 
(2008 - 2015 per tonne of production)

Reduction of greenhouse gas emissions by

    37% 
(2008 - 2015 per tonne of production)

Saving energy by

    40%
(2008 - 2015 per tonne of production)

RURAL DEVELOPMENT NUTRITION ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
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Nespray Nutri-Up
A Ready-To-Drink (RTD) product, made with local milk and fortified with vitamins A 
and D to help address micronutrient deficiencies

Maggi Devilled X-Tra Green Chilli
Sri Lanka’s first green chilli noodle

Nestlé Docello Dessert Solutions
Available in chocolate mousse, panna cotta and crème bruleé, these dessert 
mixes allow culinary professionals to make quality desserts quicker and at a 
lower cost

Strengthening our product portfolio

2015 Highlights
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‘Best Exporter of the Coconut & Coconut Based 
Product Sector’ and ‘Best Exporter of the Food & 
Other Beverages Product Sector’
Awarded at the Presidential Export Awards, for our contribution to Sri Lanka’s exports

Empowering Dairy Development in Sri Lanka
Awarded by the Minister of Public Administration, in recognition of our work in developing 
Sri Lanka’s dairy industry

Maggi: ‘Food Brand of the Year’ and
‘Youth Food Brand of the Year’ 
This marks the third consecutive year Maggi has won both titles at the SLIM - Nielsen People’s 
Awards   

Ranked in the 

Top 20 best performing companies in Sri Lanka 
Recognised for financial performance by Business Today and LMD (Lanka Monthly Digest)

Recognition

2015 Highlights
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Dear Shareholders, 

It is with great pleasure that I present our Annual 
Report and audited statement of accounts for the 
year 2015. You can be proud of your Company’s 
performance. We have once again been able to 
deliver sustainable profitable growth.

Our strong performance results from consistently 
and diligently addressing our consumers' needs. We 
actively manage our portfolio, ensuring we align our 
resources behind our strongest ideas, products and 
brands. Whilst delivering good financial performance, 
this discipline has helped us in our journey to be the 
recognised and trusted leader in Nutrition, Health and 
Wellness.

We also drive efficiencies across the value chain, 
allowing us to decrease operational costs and free up 
resources to support growth.

I know that such a performance requires hard work 
from everybody in our organisation. It requires 
commitment, persistence, discipline, dedication 
and an entrepreneurial spirit. For exhibiting all this, 
I wholeheartedly thank our Nestlé Lanka employees 
and our numerous partners and stakeholders. I would 

also like to thank you, our shareholders, for your 
investment, your trust and your confidence, which 
have enabled us to deliver good returns over the long 
term.

In light of your Company’s consistent and solid 
performance, your Directors were pleased to declare 
an interim dividend of Rs. 34.50 per share on 23 
February 2016 and are recommending a final dividend 
of Rs. 30 per share for your approval.

In 2016 we will place a greater emphasis on being 
recognised as a company that is Fast, Focused and 
Flexible. We will concentrate on innovation led by 
consumer insights, and will be guided increasingly by 
nutritional science to provide promising platforms for 
future growth, in line with our strategy of Nutrition, 
Health and Wellness.

2016 is also the year when we, as Nestlé, celebrate 
a significant milestone. This year, we are celebrating 
110 years of our presence in Sri Lanka and 150 years 
worldwide. That is 150 years of passion for nutrition 
and for quality that builds trust. It is 150 years of 
enhancing lives and of creating a positive impact in 
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Chairman’s Message 

This year, we are celebrating 110 years in Sri Lanka and 150 
years worldwide. That is 150 years of passion for nutrition 
and for quality that builds trust. It is 150 years of enhancing 
lives and of creating a positive impact in local communities 
through our business. It is 150 years to be proud of.

local communities through our business. It is 150 
years we are truly proud of.

We look forward to making 2016 the first successful 
year of our next 150 years. I am sure that our success 
will continue to be based on the same ingredients 
as before; our people, our passion for nutrition, our 
determination to stay the course and look ahead, to 
understand the environment in which we operate, 
and to organise ourselves to seize opportunities to 
strengthen our business.  

Suresh Naryananan
Chairman
NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

23 February 2016

Nestlé Lanka’s state-of-the-art factory in Kurunegala
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Dear Shareholders, 

The year under review has been a good one for 
your Company. We have delivered strong results for 
what has been a challenging year. We were able to 
maintain or increase market share in the majority of 
our categories, and, more importantly, strengthen 
our credentials as a leading Nutrition, Health and 
Wellness company. This performance demonstrates 
the intrinsic strengths of Nestlé - the commitment of 
our people, the strength of our portfolio, the quality of 
our products and the trust of our consumers. 

Our much loved power brands Nestomalt, Milo 
and Maggi played an important role in fuelling your 
Company’s growth. 

Sri Lanka’s household favourite, Nestomalt, further 
increased its market share; deepening its engagement 
with rural consumers. Milo also maintained a strong 
growth momentum, partnering with the Ministry of 
Education to empower hundreds of thousands of 
athletes across the island with national school sports 
events. It also launched a new campaign, ‘Mom, 
Me and My Milo’, to encourage mothers and kids 
to partner together in leading a healthy and active 
lifestyle.  

Maggi launched Maggi Devilled X-Tra Green Chilli 
noodles and ended the year on a steady note, 
signifying the strong trust consumers have in the 
quality and safety of the brand. Nespray, which 
comes to consumers with the goodness of Sri Lankan 
milk and Nestlé’s global expertise in child nutrition, 
strengthened its portfolio with the launch of Nespray 
Nutri-Up, a Ready-To-Drink product fortified with 
vitamins A and D. 

Recognising that food is a conscious way to bring 
health and nutrition benefits to our consumers, we 
are continuing to innovate and renovate our products 
to offer nutritional advantages and ensure that the 
Nestlé name on the pack is a promise of ‘Good Food, 
Good Life’ to our consumers. 

Using our global R&D expertise, we are working to 
ensure that our products offer the most superior 
nutritional profile in their respective categories. Our 
products are fortified with essential micronutrients 
and other vitamins and minerals, and supplemented 
with vegetables and other nutritious ingredients as 
relevant. We are also reducing the levels of public 
health sensitive nutrients - like salt and sugar - in our 
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products while ensuring the taste our consumers 
love remains unchanged.  

Our leadership in Nutrition, Health and Wellness 
also extends to creating public awareness about the 
importance of good nutrition and an active lifestyle.  

The Nestlé Healthy Kids Programme, which partners 
with the Education Ministry, was expanded to 
educate over 46,500 additional school children on 
nutrition and the importance of physical activity. In 
parallel, we launched a number of public awareness 
campaigns to encourage adults to ‘Choose Wellness’ 
through a healthy diet and lifestyle. 

The intrinsic value of our nutrition agenda in Sri Lanka 
will increase as the population expands, healthcare 
challenges increase, and related costs multiply. We 
are committed to using our global know-how, and 
presence at the cutting edge of science, to contribute 
towards providing solutions for health concerns, 
ranging from malnutrition to obesity, in the country. 
Enhancing lives with our products will continue to 
shape everything we do. 

It gives me great pleasure and pride to note that 
your Company continued to honour its commitment 

to Creating Shared Value (CSV). CSV refers to our 
fundamental belief that to be successful over time, 
we need to create value for our shareholders while 
creating value for society at the same time.

We continued to invest in Sri Lanka’s rural economy, 
contributing more than Rs. 6 billion to almost 25,000 
local farming families to purchase fresh milk and 
coconuts for our products; and remained committed 
to manufacturing as efficiently as possible, reducing 
our energy consumption by 40% and water 
consumption by 39% over the last seven years.

We also continued to be recognised with a number 
of accolades and awards in 2015, for our financial 
performance and contribution to the economy. 

Looking back, we can be proud of what we have 
achieved. I would like to thank all our employees - 
at the head office, in our factory and on the field - 
for their efforts. Their hard work, dedication, talent, 
creativity and entrepreneurship were key to delivering 
our results. We would also like to thank you, our 
shareholders, for your continued confidence, support 
and unwavering loyalty. 

Looking forward, this year is a special one for Nestlé. 

We celebrate 110 years in Sri Lanka and 150 years 
worldwide. 2016 is a year to thank everybody who 
has brought us here - our consumers, our employees, 
our distribution partners, our suppliers and our 
shareholders. It is a unique opportunity to celebrate 
and share our passion for nutrition; our passion for 
helping generation after generation of people live 
happy, healthy lives. 

As we begin the next 150 years, we will strengthen 
the foundations of future growth while delivering in 
the short term and continue to invest for the future; 
in our brands, our innovation, our capacity and our 
people. 

  

Shivani Hegde
Managing Director
NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

23 February 2016

Managing Director’s Message 

The year under review has been a good one for your Company. We have delivered strong results for 
what has been a challenging year. We were able to maintain or increase market share in the majority 
of our categories, and, more importantly, strengthen our credentials as a leading Nutrition, Health and 
Wellness company. This performance demonstrates the intrinsic strengths of Nestlé - the commitment 
of our people, the strength of our portfolio, the quality of our products and the trust of our consumers.
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ys;j;a fldgia ysñlrejks"

 

wm úiska úuiqug ,lalrk j¾Ih ieneúkau Tnf.a iud.ug iqúfYaIs jkakls' tu j¾Ifha§ 

wNsfhda. uOHfha id¾:l m%;sM, /ila ysñlr.ekSug wmg yelshdj ,enqks' fjf<`ofmdf,ys 

wm l%shd;aul ksmehqï wxYhka nyq;rhl wm ysñlrf.k isák fldgiaysñldÍ;ajh 

my; fkdjeà ;nd.ekSug fyda j¾Okh lr.ekSug wms iu;a jQfhuq' fmdaIKh, fi!LH 

iy hy.=Kh /f.k tk m%uqL fmf<a iud.ula jYfhka wm flfrys we;s úYajikSh;ajh 

iún,.kajd.ekSu ta w;ßka b;du jeo.;a fõ' fï ish¿ ch.%yKhkaf.ka fmkakqï lrkafka 

fkiaf,a i;= ienE Yla;shhs, wmf.a fiajl msßfiys lemùuhs, wmf.a ksmehqïj, m%n,;ajhhs, 

wmf.a ksmehqïj, m%ñ;sh iy mdßfNda.slhka wm flfrys ;nd we;s úYajdihhs'

wmf.a fkiagfuda,aÜ, uhsf,da iy ue.S hk n,j;a ikakduhka iud.fï j¾Okh fjkqfjka 

jeo.;a odhl;;ajhla ,nd § ;sfí'

Y%S ,xldfõ iEu ksjilu b;d ckm%sh ikakduhla jk fkiagfuda,aÜ i;= fjf<`ofmd, fldgia

ysñldÍ;ajh j¾Okh ù we;s w;r .%dóh mdßfNda.slhska iu. we;s ne`§u iúu;alr .ekSug 

iu;aj we;' wOHdmk wud;HdxYh iu. iyfhda.s;djh f.dvk.d.ksñka ish oyia .Kkla 

mdi,a u,, l%Svl l%Säldjka iún, .kajk mdi,a l%Svd biõjka i`oyd wkq.%dl;ajh ,nd 

foñka wmf.a ;j;a jeo.;a ksmehqula jk uhsf,da iqúfYaI j¾Okhla mj;ajdf.k we;' 

'Mom, Me and My Milo' kñka kjH jHdmD;shla Èh;alrñka ksfrda.su;a fukau l%shdYS,S 

Èúfmfj;la ysñlr.ekSu i`oyd uõjreka iy orejka fhduqlrùug uhsf,da lghq;= lrk 

,È'

miq.sh j¾Ifha§ wmf.a ue.S ikakduh hgf;a zue.S fvú,aâ tlaiag%d .%Ska Ñ,S kQâ,aiaZ y`ÿkajd 

ÿka w;r ue.S hkq iqrlaIs; fukau m%ñ;s.; ksmehqula njg mßfNda.slhka w;r úYajdih 

by< kxjkakgo yelshdj ,enqks' úgñka A iy D fmdaIKfhka mßmQ¾KjQ zfkiafm%a kshqá% wmaZ 

(Ready-To-Drink) mdkh y`ÿkajd foñka <ore fmdaIKfhys f.da,Sh úfYaI{;djh we;sj 

fkiaf,a iud.fï ;j;a ikakduhla jk fkiafm%a ;u ksmehqï mrdih mq¿,a lr.ksñka, 

Y%S ,dxlsl kejqï lsß hy.=Kh ;jÿrg;a mdßfNda.slhka w;rg /f.k hdug iu;a úh' 

wdydr wmf.a mdßfNda.slhkag fi!LH iy fmdaIK m%;s,dN ,ndfok jeo.;a iïm;la nj 

y`ÿkd.ksñka jeä fmdaIK m%;s,dNhla ,nd .ekSug yelsjk whqßka ksrka;rju wmf.a 

ksmehqï kjHlrKhg ,lalrkafkuq' fkiaf,a kduh lsishï wiqreul we;akï th zmsßmqka 

wyßka msßmqka ÈúhlaZ ,ndfok fkiaf,a ksmehqula njg wms iy;sl jkafkuq'

wm i;= f.da,Sh iólaIK iy ixj¾Ok úfYaI{;djh Wmfhda.s lr.ksñka wmf.a ksmehqïj, 

úYsIag fmdaIKSh .=Kdx. ;jÿrg;a iy;sllr .ekSu fjkqfjka wms lghq;= lrkafkuq' wmf.a 

ksIamdokj,g jeo.;a laIqø fmdaIl iy fjk;a úgñka iy LKsc ,jK fukau t<j¿ iy 

fjk;a fmdaIK wuqøjH w;sf¾l jYfhka tl;= lsÍugo lghq;= lr ;sfí' tmuKla fkdj 

mdßfNda.slhd wmf.a ksmehqï flfrys olajk leue;a; fkdwvqj mj;ajd.ksñka, tajdfha 

rih /l.ksñka uyck fi!LHhg ixfõ§ ¨Kq iy iSks jeks fmdaIl wmf.a ksIamdokj,g 

fhdod.ekSu wju lsÍugo lghq;= lf<uq'

fmdaIKh, fi!LH iy hy.=Kh muKla fkdj jeo.;a fmdaIKhla iy ls%hdYS,S Èú meje;aula

mj;ajd.ekSfï jeo.;alu ms<sn`oj uyckhd ±kqj;a lsÍu iïnkaOfhkao wms m%uqL;ajh 

ysñlrf.k isákafkuq'

wOHdmk wud;HdxYh iu. taldnoaOj Èh;a l< zfkiaf,a fy,aÈ lsâiaZ jevigyk 46,500lg 

jeä wu;r mdi,a <uqka m%udKhlg fmdaIKh iy YdÍßl ls%hdldÍ;ajfhys jeo.;alu 

ms<sn`oj ±kqu fnod§ug yelsjk mßÈ ;j;a mq¿,a lrk ,È' Bg iu.dój fi!LH iïmkak 

wdydr fõ,la iy Èú meje;aula yryd zhy.=Kh f;dard.ekSuZ i`oyd jeäysáhka Wkkaÿ 

lrjk uyck ±kqj;a lsÍï jHdmD;s /ila wms y`ÿkajd ÿkafkuq'
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l<ukdldr wOHlaIl;=ñhf.a iudf,dapkh

ck jHdma;sh, fi!LHdrlaIK wNsfhda. by< hdu iy wod< úhoï hk lreKqj,g idfmalaIj

Y%S ,xldj ;=< wmf.a fmdaIK l%shdkaú;fhys w.ho by< kxjkafkuq' cd;Hka;r ±kqï 

yelshdj Ndú;hg lemù isák wms kùk úoHdfõ Ndú;fhka ukaofmdaIKfha isg ;rndrelu 

olajd fmdaIK fi!LH .eg¿j,g úi`ÿï fiùug odhl;ajh ,nd fokafkuq' wmf.a ksmehqï 

yryd mdßfNda.slhskaf.a Ôú; by< kxjkakg lghq;= lsÍu iEu úgu wmf.a wruqKhs'

Tfí iud.u iduQysl idrO¾u ks¾udKlrkfhys (CSV) È.ska È.gu lemùfuka ksr;jk 

nj Tng ±kqï fokafka b;du;a i;=áka iy wdvïnrfhks' wmf.a iyfhda.s;dlrejkag w.h 

tl;= lrk w;ru iudch fj;o w.h tl;= lsÍu iduQysl idrO¾u ks¾udKlrkfhys 

uQ,sldx.hla nj wmf.a úYajdihhs'

Y%S ,xldfõ .%dóh wd¾Ólh k.disgqùu fjkqfjka wdfhdackh lrk wms foaYSh lsß f.dú mjq,a

25,000l f.ka wmf.a ksIamdok i`oyd wjYh kejqï lsß iy fmd,a ñ,§ .ekSug remsh,a 

ì,shk 6lg jeä uqo,la jd¾Islj jehlrkafkuq' M,odhS f,i wmf.a ksIamdok l%shdj,sh 

mj;ajdf.k hk wms ta i`oyd jeh jk n,Yla;sh 40%lska iy c, mßfNdackh 39%lska 

my< ±óug miq.sh j¾I 7lg jeä ld,iSudj ;=< iu;aj we;s njo mejish hq;=h'

tfukau 2015 j¾Ih ;=< wmf.a uq,H ld¾hidOkh iy cd;sl wd¾Ólhg ,nd ÿka odhl;ajh

fjkqfjka we.hSï iy iïudk rdYshlska msÿï ,eîug wmg yelshdj ,enqks'

wdmiq ne,Sfï§ wm ,nd f.k ;sfnk ch.%yKhka iïnkaOfhka ieneúkau wdvïnr úh yels

;;a;ajhl wm isákafkuq' wmf.a m%Odk ld¾hd,fhys, l¾udka;Yd,dfjys iy lafIa;%fhys 

fiajfhys ksr; wmf.a fiajl msßig ia;+;sh m<lsÍug uu fuh wjia:djla lr.ksñ' Tjqkaf.a 

uykaish, lemùu, yelshdj, ks¾udKYS,S;ajh iy jHjidhl;ajh wmf.a id¾:l m%;sM, 

i`oyd úYd, odhl;ajhla ,nd § ;sfí' wm flfrys ;enQ úYajdih, wmg ,nd ÿka wk.s 

iyfhda.h iy iaÓr úYajdih fjkqfjka wmf.a jHdmdßl iyfhda.s;dlrejka jk Tngo 

wmf.a ia;+;sh msßkukafkuq'

bÈßh foi úuiqï iy.;j ne,Sfï§ wmg mejish yelafla fï j¾Ih wmg iqúfYaIS j¾Ihla 

njhs' Y%S ,xldj ;=< wmf.a jHdmdßl lghq;= wdrïNlr j¾I 110la imsfrk w;r cd;Hka;r 

jYfhka fkiaf,a iud.u wdrïNù j¾I 150la imsÍuo fï j¾Ifha§ isÿ fõ' wm fu;ekg 

/f.k taug odhl;ajh iemhQ wmf.a mdßfNda.slhska, fiajlhska, fnodyeÍfï ksfhdað;hska, 

iemhqïlrejka iy wmf.a jHdmdßl iyfhda.s;dlrejka fj; ia;+;sjka; ùug fukau 

fmdaIKh fjkqfjka wm olajk uy;ajQ ,eÈhdj fnod.ekSug iy mrmqßka mrmqrg i;=áka 

fi!LH iïmkakj Ôj;aùug wm ,nd fok iyfhda.h ieuÍug 2016 j¾Ih wjia:djla 

lr.ksuq'

B<`. j¾I 150g wdrïNh .ksñka wkd.; j¾Okfhys moku ;j;a iún, .kajñka wmf.a

ikakduhka, kjHlrKhka, wmf.a Odß;djhka iy wmf.a fiajl msßia fjkqfjka bÈßhg;a

wdfhdackhka isÿlrkakg wms lemùfuka lghq;= lrkafkuq'

Ysjdks fy.afâ

l<ukdldr wOHlaIsld

fkiaf,a ,xld mSt,aiS

23 fmnrjdß 2016
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md;gpw;Fhpa gq;Fjhuh;fNs>

ehk; kPsha;T nra;fpd;w ,e;j Mz;L vkJ epWtdj;ijg; nghWj;jtiuapy; rpwg;ghd xU 

Mz;lhf mikag;ngw;Ws;sJ. rthy;kpf;f xU Mz;by; ehk; cWjpahd ngWNgWfis 

ntspg;gLj;jpAs;Nshk;. ngUk;ghyhd vkJ cw;gj;jpg; gphpTfspy; vkJ re;ijg;gq;fpidj; 

jf;fitj;Jf;nfhs;s my;yJ mjpfhpf;f vk;khy; Kbe;Js;sJld;> mij tplTk; 

Kf;fpakhf> Cl;lr;rj;J> MNuhf;fpak; ey;tho;T Mfpatw;wpy; Kd;dpiy tfpf;Fk; xU 

epWtdk; vd;w vkJ ed;kjpg;igAk; ehk; tYg;gLj;jpAs;Nshk;. vkJ gzpahsh;fspd; 

mh;g;gzpg;Gldhd <LghL> vkJ cw;gj;jp thpirapd; gyk;> vkJ cw;gj;jpfspd; juk; 

kw;Wk; Efh;Nthh; vk;kPJ nfhz;Ls;s ek;gpf;if Mfpa ne];Ny epWtdj;jpd; cs;shh;e;j 

gyq;fis ,g; ngWNgWfs; Gyg;gLj;Jfpd;wd.

ehk; kpfTk; Nerpf;fpd;w> tYthd th;j;jfehkq;fshd ne];lNkhy;w;W> ikNyh kw;Wk; 

nkfp Mfpad vkJ epWtdj;jpd; tsh;r;rpf;F ce;Jrf;jpahf> Kf;fpa gq;F tfpj;Js;sd.

,yq;ifapy; midj;J ,y;yq;fspYk; tpUg;gj;jpw;Fhpa xU th;j;jfehkkhfj; 

jpfOk; ne];lNkhy;w;W> fpuhkg;Gw Efh;NthUlhd jdJ <Lghl;il Mokhf;fp> jdJ 

re;ijg;gq;fpid NkYk; mjpfhpj;Jf; nfhz;Ls;sJ. Njrpa ghlrhiy tpisahl;L 

epfo;Tfspd; %ykhf ehnlq;fpYKs;s gy;yhapuf;fzf;fhd tpisahl;L tPuh;fis 

MSikg;gLj;Jk; Kfkhf fy;tp mikr;Rld; gq;Fliknahd;iw Vw;gLj;jpf; nfhz;Ls;s 

ikNyh> cWjpahd tsh;r;rpg; Nghf;fpidg; NgzpAs;sJ. NkYk; md;idaUk;> 

gps;isfSk; xd;wpize;J MNuhf;fpakhd kw;Wk; clw;nraw;ghLfs; nfhz;l tho;f;if 

Kiwnahd;iw Kd;ndLg;gij Cf;Ftpg;gjw;F ‘Mom, Me and My Milo’ vd;w Gjpa 
gpur;rhuj;ijAk; mJ Muk;gpj;Js;sJ.

Maggi Devilled X-Tra Green Chilli E}by;]; cw;gj;jpia mwpKfk; nra;J itj;Js;s 

nkfp> fle;j Mz;il Fwpg;gpLk;gbahf epiwT nra;Js;sJ. th;j;jfehkj;jpd; juk; kw;Wk; 

ghJfhg;G kPJ Efh;Nthh; nfhz;Ls;s mirahj ek;gpf;ifia ,J ntspg;gLj;jpAs;sJ. 

,yq;ifapy; cw;gj;jp nra;ag;gLk; eyr;nrOikkpf;f ghiyf; nfhz;L jahhpf;fg;gLk; 

ne];gpNw Efh;Nthiu vl;LtJld;> ne];Ny epWtdk; rpWth; Ngh~hf;F njhlh;gpy; 

nfhz;Ls;s rh;tNjr epGzj;Jtj;jpd; JizAld;> tpl;lkpd;fs; V kw;Wk; b Mfpait 

epuk;gpa> cldbahf gUFtjw;F cfe;j xU ghdkhd Nespray Nutri-Up ,id 
mwpKfg;gLj;jp> jdJ cw;gj;jp thpiria NkYk; gyg;gLj;jpAs;sJ.

vkJ Efh;NthUf;F MNuhf;fpak; kw;Wk; Cl;lr;rj;jpd; ed;ikfis toq;Ftjw;F 

czNt rpwe;j top vd;gij ,dq;fz;Ls;s ehk;> xt;nthU ne];Ny cw;gj;jpapdJ 

gf;fl;bYk; nghwpf;fg;gl;Ls;s ‘ey;YzT> ey; tho;T’ vd;w ne];Nyapd; cWjpnkhopia 

vkJ Efh;NthUf;F toq;Ftij cWjpnra;J> Cl;lr;rj;jpd; ed;ikfis toq;Ftjw;F 

vkJ cw;gj;jpfs; njhlh;gpy; Gj;jhf;fq;fs; kw;Wk; GJg;gpj;jy;fis njhlh;r;rpahf ehk; 

Kd;ndLj;J tUfpd;Nwhk;.

rh;tNjr mstpy; ehk; nfhz;Ls;s Muha;r;rp kw;Wk; mgptpUj;jp epGzj;Jtj;ij 

cgNahfpj;J> vkJ cw;gj;jpfs; KiwNa Fwpj;j cw;gj;jpg; gphpTfspy; mjprpwe;j 

Cl;lr;rj;J cs;slf;fq;fisf; nfhz;Ls;sitahf jpfo;tij cWjpnra;Ak; Nehf;Fld; 

ehk; nraw;gl;L tUfpd;Nwhk;. vkJ cw;gj;jpfs; mj;jpahtrpakhd Ez;Cl;lr;rj;Jf;fs; 

kw;Wk; Vida tpl;lkpd;fs; kw;Wk; fdpAg;Gf;fspd; nrOikAld;> nghUj;jkhd kuf;fwp 

tiffs; kw;Wk; Vida Cl;lr;rj;J cl;Nrh;f;iffs; Nrh;f;fg;gl;litahf jpfo;fpd;wd. 

cg;G kw;Wk; rPdp Nghd;W nghJkf;fs; jq;fs; MNuhf;fpak; njhlh;gpy; mf;fiw 

nfhz;Ls;s Cl;lr;rj;Jf;fis vkJ cw;gj;jpfspy; Nrh;f;Fk; msT kl;lq;fis ehk; 

Fiwj;J tUtJld;> Efh;Nthhpd; tpUg;gjpw;Fhpa Rit njhlh;e;Jk; khwhky; ,Ug;gijAk; 

cWjp nra;fpd;Nwhk;.

Cl;lr;rj;J> MNuhf;fpak; kw;Wk; ey;tho;T Mfpatw;wpy; ehk; tfpj;JtUfpd;w Kd;dzp 

];jhdk;> rpwe;j Cl;lr;rj;J kw;Wk; clw;nraw;ghLfs; nfhz;l tho;f;ifKiw 

Mfpatw;wpd; Kf;fpaj;Jtk; njhlh;gpy; nghJkf;fs; kj;jpapy; tpopg;Gzh;T+l;Ltjw;Fk; 

ePl;bf;fg;gLfpd;wJ.

fy;tpaikr;Rld; ,ize;J Kd;ndLf;fg;gl;Ls;s Nestlé Healthy Kids (ne];Ny 

MNuhf;fpakhd Foe;ijfs;) epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpd; fPo; Cl;lr;rj;J kw;Wk; 

clw;nraw;ghLfspd; Kf;fpaj;Jtk; njhlh;gpy; Nkyjpfkhf 46,500 ,w;Fk; Nkw;gl;l 

ghlrhiy khzth;fSf;F mwpT+l;lg;gl;Ls;sJ. ,jw;F ,izahf> tsh;e;jth;fs; kj;jpapy; 

mth;fs; MNuhf;fpakhd czT eilKiw kw;Wk; tho;f;if Kiw Mfpatw;wpD}lhf 

‘ey;tho;itj; Njh;e;njLg;gij’ Cf;Ftpf;Fk; tifapy; gy;NtW nghJ tpopg;Gzh;Tg; 

gpur;rhuq;fisAk; ehk; Muk;gpj;Js;Nshk;.

rdj;njhif mjpfhpg;G kw;Wk; Rfhjhug; guhkhpg;G rthy;fspd; mjpfhpg;G kw;Wk; mJ 

njhlh;gpy; gd;klq;F nryT mjpfhpg;G Mfpatw;wpw;Nfw;g ,yq;ifapy; vkJ Cl;lr;rj;J 

epfo;r;rpj;jpl;lj;jpd; cs;shh;e;j ngWkjpAk; mjd; ew;gyDk; mjpfhpf;Fk;. ehl;by; 

Ngh~hf;fpd;ik Kjy; clw; gUkd; tiu gy;NtWgl;l MNuhf;fpak; njhlh;Ggl;l 

mf;fiwfSf;F jPh;Tfhz;gjpy; gq;fspg;Gr; nra;tjw;F vkJ rh;tNjr epGzj;Jtj;ij 

cgNahfpg;gjpYk;> etPd tpQ;Qhdj;ij iff;nfhs;tjpYk; ehk; njhlh;e;Jk; 

mh;g;gzpg;Gldhd <Lghl;Lld; nraw;gl;L tUfpd;Nwhk;. ehk; Nkw;nfhs;Sk; xt;nthU 
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nraw;ghl;bd; %ykhfTk;> vkJ cw;gj;jpfs; kf;fspd; tho;it Nkk;gLj;Jtij ehk; 

njhlh;e;Jk; Kd;ndLg;Nghk;.

gfph;T mbg;gilapyhd ngWkjpiaj; Njhw;Wtpj;jy; (Creating Shared Value) vd;w 

cWjpnkhopapd; <Lghl;il vkJ epWtdk; njhlh;e;Jk; rpwg;ghf filg;gpbj;J tUtij 

cq;fSf;F ngUkfpo;r;rpAlDk;> ngUikAlDk; $wpf;nfhs;fpd;Nwd;. vkJ epWtdj;jpd; 

ntw;wpfukhd njhopw;ghLfs; %ykhf vk;Kila gq;Fjhuh;fs; kw;Wk; xl;Lnkhj;j 

r%fj;jpw;Fk; ew;gyidj; Njhw;Wtpf;fNtz;Lk; vd;w vkJ %y ek;gpf;ifapd; ntspg;ghNl 

gfph;T mbg;gilapy; ngWkjpiaj; Njhw;Wtpj;jy; vd;gjhFk;.

,yq;ifapy; fpuhkpag; nghUshjhuj;jpd; kPJ ehk; njhlh;e;Jk; KjyPLfis Nkw;nfhz;L 

tUtJld;> vkJ cw;gj;jpfis jahhpg;gjw;Fj; Njitahd ghy; kw;Wk; Njq;fha;fis 

fpl;lj;jl;l 25,000 cs;ehl;L gz;izahsh; FLk;gq;fsplkpUe;J nfhs;tdT nra;J 

mjd; %ykhf 6 gpy;ypad; &ghtpw;Fk; mjpfkhd njhifia gq;fspg;Gr; nra;Js;Nshk;. 

fle;j VO Mz;Lfspy; vkJ kpd;tY Efh;it 40% ,dhYk;> jz;zPh; Efh;it 

39% ,dhYk; Fiwj;J> Kbe;jtiu tpidjpwd; kpf;f topfspy; vkJ cw;gj;jp 

eltbf;iffis Kd;ndLg;gjpYk; ehk; kpFe;j mh;g;gzpg;Gld; nraw;gl;L tUfpd;Nwhk;.

vkJ epjpapay; ngWNgWfs; kw;Wk; nghUshjhuj;jpw;fhd gq;fspg;G Mfpatw;wpw;fhf 2015 
Mk; Mz;by; gy;NtW ghuhl;Lf;fs;> ,dq;fhzy; mq;fPfhuq;fs; kw;Wk; tpUJfisAk; 

ehk; rk;ghjpj;Js;Nshk;.

ehk; fle;J te;j ghijiaj; jpUk;gpg; ghh;f;ifapy; vkJ rhjidfisapl;L ehk; 

ngUikg;gl KbAk;. vkJ jiyik mYtyfk;> vkJ njhopw;rhiy kw;Wk; ntspf;fsg; 

gzpfspy; <Lgl;Ls;s vkJ midj;J gzpahsh;fSf;Fk; mth;fsJ Kaw;rpfSf;fhf 

ehd; ed;wpfisj; njhptpj;Jf;nfhs;s tpUk;Gfpd;Nwd;. mth;fsJ fLikahd ciog;G> 

mh;g;gzpg;Gldhd <LghL> Mw;wy;> gilg;ghf;fj;jpwd; kw;Wk; njhopy;Kaw;rpahz;ik 

MfpadNt vkJ ngWNgWfSf;fhd %yhjhuq;fs;. ePq;fs; njhlh;r;rpahf vk;kPJ 

itj;Js;s ek;gpf;if> vkf;F toq;fptUk; MjuT kw;Wk; mirf;f Kbahj tpRthrk; 

Mfpatw;wpw;fhf cq;fSf;Fk;> vkJ gq;Fjhuh;fSf;Fk; ed;wpfisj; njhptpj;Jf;nfhs;s 

tpUk;Gfpd;Nwhk;.

vjph;fhyj;ij Nehf;Fifapy; ,e;j Mz;L ne];Ny epWtdj;ijg; nghWj;jtiuapy; 

tpNrlkhd xU Mz;L. ehk; ,yq;ifapy; 110 tUlq;fs; G+h;j;jpiaAk;> cyfpy; 150 
tUlq;fs; G+h;j;jpiaAk; nfhz;lhLfpd;Nwhk;. vk;ik ,e;j ];jhdj;jpw;F cah;j;jpAs;s 

vkJ Efh;Nthh;> vkJ Copah;fs;> vkJ tpepNahf gq;fhsh;fs;> vkJ toq;Fdh;fs; 

kw;Wk; vkJ gq;Fjhuh;fs; vd midtUf;Fk; ed;wp nrYj;jNtz;ba xU Mz;lhf 

2016 mike;Js;sJ. Cl;lr;rj;J kPJ ehk; nfhz;Ls;s jPtpu czh;T> jiyKiw 

jiyKiwahf kf;fs; kfpo;r;rpAlDk;> MNuhf;fpaj;JlDk; tho;tjw;F cjTtJ kPJ 

ehk; nfhz;Ls;s jPtpu czh;T Mfpatw;iwf; nfhz;lhb> gfph;e;Jnfhs;tjw;F ,J 

jdpj;Jtkhd xU tha;g;ghFk;.

mLj;j 150 Mz;Lfis Nehf;fpa vkJ gazj;ij Muk;gpf;Fk; ,j;jUzj;jpy;> 

vjph;fhyj;jpd; tsh;r;rpf;fhd vkJ mj;jpthuq;fis ehk; NkYk; gyg;gLj;jp> FWfpa fhy 

ngWNgWfis tpepNahfpj;J> vjph;fhyk;> vkJ th;j;jfehkq;fs;> vkJ Gj;jhf;fk;> vkJ 

Mw;wy; kw;Wk; vkJ gzpahsh;fs; kPJ ehk; njhlh;e;Jk; KjyPLfis Nkw;nfhs;Nthk;.

~pthdp n`f;Nl

Kfhikj;Jtg; gzpg;ghsh;

ne];Ny yq;fh gPvy;rp

23 ngg;uthp 2016 

Kfhikj;Jtg; gzpg;ghshpd; kPsha;T
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Suresh  
Narayanan 
is the Head of Nestlé in South Asia, which 
includes Sri Lanka, India, Bangladesh, 
Nepal and Maldives. He was appointed 
to the Board of Nestlé Lanka PLC as 
Chairman on 16 October 2015. 

Suresh Narayanan joined Nestlé in 1999 
as Executive Vice President for Sales 
in India. He moved to Nestlé Indochina 
(which includes Thailand, Cambodia, 
Myanmar, Laos and Vietnam) in 2003 as 
Executive Director for Sales, Marketing 
and Food-Services for the region. Two 
years later, he returned to Nestlé India as 
Head of Sales. 

In 2008, he was appointed Managing 
Director of Nestlé Singapore. He was 
awarded the Medal of Commendation 
by the Government of Singapore for 
sustaining growth amidst economic 
downturn in the country. In 2010 he 
was appointed Head of NEAR (North 
East Africa Region) for Nestlé. His last 
post before moving to his current role 
in South Asia was Chairman and CEO of 
Nestlé Philippines. 

He holds a Master’s Degree in 
Economics from the Delhi School of 
Economics and a Diploma from the IMD 
Executive Development Programme in 
Switzerland. He has also participated in 
Nestlé’s Leadership Programme at the 
London Business School. 

Mr. Narayanan has over 30 years of 
experience in the FMCG industry. 
In addition to Nestlé, his vast career 
includes a number of senior management 
positions in Unilever and Colgate 
Palmolive. 

Etienne 
Benet 
was Chairman and Director of Nestlé 
Lanka PLC from 1 January 2014 to 16 
October 2015. 

Etienne Benet holds a Master’s Degree 
in Agronomy and Engineering, and 
joined Nestlé France in 1989 as an 
Internal Auditor. He commenced his 
international career in 1991 in Egypt as 
Factory Controller, then as the Group 
Management Accountant, followed by 

an assignment in Sales and Marketing 
of the Chilled business. In 1997 he was 
appointed Country Manager for Gabon, 
and in 1999 returned to Egypt as Country 
Business Manager for Nestlé Waters. In 
2004, he was transferred to Indonesia as 
Country Manager for Nestlé Waters and 
in 2008, was appointed Head of Nestlé’s 
operations in Central and West Africa (a 
cluster of 22 countries). In October 2013, 
he was transferred to India as Head of 
Nestlé South Asia.

Shivani 
Hegde 
is the Managing Director of Nestlé Lanka 
PLC. She heads Nestlé’s operations in 
both Sri Lanka and the Maldives since 
1 February 2015.  

Shivani Hegde joined Nestlé in India as 
a Management Trainee in 1986.  Her 
extensive experience in the company, 
spanning 30 years, covers a multitude 
of functions including Marketing, 
Sales, Human Resources and Nestlé 

Professional (Nestlé’s out-of-home F&B 
solutions arm for culinary professionals). 

Before she took on her current role 
in Sri Lanka, she was Executive Vice 
President of Nestlé’s Food business in 
South Asia for ten years.  Her extensive 
experience, coupled with her track record 
of consistent business results and strong 
marketing and business proficiencies, 
saw her appointed to Nestlé’s global 
Marketing Leadership Council, which 
comprises select senior management 
officials from Nestlé’s headquarters in 
Vevey, Switzerland and regional markets. 

She holds a Masters in Business 
Administration from the Faculty of 
Management Studies in New Delhi, 
and a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics. 
She has also participated in Nestlé's 
Leadership Programme, conducted by 
the London Business School.   

Ganesan 
Ampalavanar
was the Managing Director of Nestlé 
Lanka PLC from 1 January 2013 to 
31 January 2015.
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Board of Directors

Ranjan 
Seevaratnam
is an Independent Non-Executive 
Director and the Chairman of the 
Audit Committee and Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee. 

He is well versed and proficient in 
fiscal matters and has enjoyed a long, 
distinguished career as former Partner 
of KPMG. He is a fellow member of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Sri Lanka and the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales. He 
currently serves as a Non-Executive 
Director on the Board of several  
prominent local companies across a 
range of industries; including agriculture, 
tea, consumer goods, construction, 
engineering, rubber, transportation and 
active carbon.

Ganesan Ampalavanar started his 
career at Nestlé Malaysia in 1991 as 
a Management Trainee. His career at 
Nestlé spans over 20 years, where he 
has served various positions in Sales, 
Brand and Commercial Management.

He was appointed Sales Director for  
Nestlé Malaysia and Singapore in 2003 
and became Head of Sales for Nestlé’s 
operations in South Asia in 2008; a 
post he held for five years before being 
appointed as Managing Director for 
Nestlé Lanka.  

A Malaysian national with Sri Lankan 
roots, he graduated in Management 
(Accounting and Finance) from University 
Sains Malaysia in Penang and has 
attended Post Graduate programmes at 
International Management Development 
(IMD), Switzerland.

Jagdish 
Kumar Singla
is the Director - Finance & Control of 
Nestlé Lanka PLC. 

A Chartered Accountant, he joined Nestlé 
India Limited in 1990. He held roles of 
increasing responsibility in Finance in 
Nestlé India’s flagship factory in Moga 
and in Nestlé’s regional head office for 
South Asia, before moving to Nestlé 
China in 1997. 

He later took on the responsibility 
of  Business Controller for the Milks 
and Nutrition Business in the Greater 
China region, returning to India in 2004 
as Moga Factory Controller. He was 
appointed Head of Nestlé Market Audit 
for Nestlé India Limited in 2008 before 
joining Nestlé Lanka in his current role in 
2014.

Shobinder 
Duggal
joined Nestlé India in 1986. A Chartered 
Accountant, he holds a wealth of 
experience in Finance, which includes 
a two year assignment with the Nestlé 
Group in Switzerland. 

He is a Non-Executive Director of Nestlé 
Lanka PLC and is also Director - Finance 
& Control for Nestlé India Limited.

Mahen 
Dayananda
is an Independent Non-Executive Director 
and the Chairman of the Remuneration 
Committee. 

An expert on economic issues, Mahen 
Dayananda is the Chairman of the 
Sri Lanka Business Development Centre. 
He chairs several organisations such as 
Total Tea Concepts (Pvt) Ltd and Indo 
Asia Teas (Pvt) Ltd. 

He is currently a Non-Executive Director 
of Pegasus Hotels of Ceylon PLC and 
Bukit Darah PLC and the Honorary Consul 
for the Republic of Benin in Sri Lanka.
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Management Committee

Standing: Norman Kannangara - AVP Beverages 
 Kumudu Dias     

    - Manager Management Accounting 
 Rohit Mittal - VP Technical
 Radhini De Costa - AVP Marketing Services
 Mrinalini Mankotia 
 - Country Business Manager Nestlé Nutrition 
 Ruwan Welikala - AVP Ambient Dairy
 Jagath Wedage - AVP Nestlé Professional
 Enoca Sirimanne - AVP Human Resources, 

Bandula Egodage     
    - AVP Corporate Affairs & Communications

 Roshan Perera    
    - Designate AVP Nestlé Professional 

Sitting: Priyadarshinie Karunaratne - AVP Food
 Deepal Abeywickrema - VP Sales
 Shivani Hegde - Managing Director
 Jagdish Kumar Singla - VP Finance and Control 35



Nestlé Lanka complies with 
established best practices 
of Corporate Governance. 

The Board has adopted the 
Nestlé Corporate Business 

Principles, which guides the 
conduct of Nestlé employees 

in their dealings with 
customers, suppliers and 

other stakeholders. It is one 
of the key objectives of the 

Company to maintain high 
standards of integrity in its 

business.

Members of the Board
The Board of Directors of Nestlé Lanka PLC comprises of six Directors of whom 
two are Executive Directors, two are Independent Non-Executive Directors and 
two are Non-Executive Directors, one being the Chairman of the Board. The 
Managing Director of the Company also acts as the Chief Executive Officer 
and the Board has entrusted the Managing Director to manage all affairs of the 
Company. The Board of Directors act on a fully informed basis, in good faith, 
with due diligence and care, and in the best interest of the Company. They are 
well aware of the company’s activities and give direction for long-term strategy; 
seeking and contributing views and opinions on strategic options proposed by the 
senior management of the Company. The Directors also ensure that the Company 
is fully compliant with the provisions of the Companies Act and the Listing Rules 
of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE).

The Directors' Interest / Involvement in the affairs of the Company are explained 
on pages 46 to 48 and the Corporate Governance Compliance Table is shown on 
pages 39 to 41.

Board Independence
Based on the declarations made annually by each of the Non-Executive Directors, 
in accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules of the CSE, 
two out of four Non-Executive Directors, namely Mahen Dayananda and Ranjan 
Seevaratnam, are considered independent. They are independent of management 
and free from any business or other relationships which could materially interfere 
with the exercise of judgment other than that are disclosed in this report.

The Board considers the other two out of the four Non-Executive Directors, namely 
Suresh Narayanan and Shobinder Duggal, as Non Independent.

Company Secretary
The Company Secretary is qualified to act as per the provisions of the Companies 
Act No. 7 of 2007, and also functions as the Legal Advisor to the Company.
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Corporate Governance

Management Committee
The Management Committee is led by the Managing Director. The Board has 
entrusted certain responsibilities, including the day to day running of the business, 
to the Management Committee. Every member of the Management Committee 
is responsible for operations and the delivery of objectives pertaining to his / her 
particular division. The Company’s Management Committee can be viewed on 
pages 34 and 35. 

Auditors
At the thirty fourth Annual General Meeting of Nestlé Lanka PLC, held on 
12 May 2015, the shareholders reappointed KPMG as the Company's auditors 
and authorised the Directors to fix their remuneration. The independent auditors 
conducted the annual audit for the year ended 31 December 2015 in order to form 
an opinion on the Financial Statements. Their report on the Financial Statements 
is given on page 62.

Audit and Remuneration Committee
The Audit Committee Report on page 42 and the Remuneration Committee Report 
on page 43 detail the functions and responsibilities of the respective Committees.

Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee
In accordance with Section 9 of the CSE Listing Rules, the Committee was 
constituted by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5 November 2015.  
Ranjan Seevaratnam was appointed Chairman of the Committee along with other 
two members, Mahen Dayananda and Jagdish Kumar Singla. The Committee is 
entrusted with the responsibility of ensuring shareholders’ interests are protected 
in all related party transactions. 

The functions of the Committee, in terms of Section 9 of the Listing Rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange, are as follows;

 Review all proposed Related Party Transactions (except for exempted 
transactions).

 Direct the transactions for Board approval / shareholder approval as deemed 
appropriate. 

 Obtain updates on previously reviewed Related Party Transactions from senior 
management and approve any material changes. 

 Establish guidelines for senior management to follow in ongoing dealings with 
related parties.

 Review and assess on an annual basis the transactions for compliance against 
the Committee guidelines.

Related Party Transactions (“RPTs”) of Nestlé Lanka PLC will be reviewed and 
disclosed in a manner consistent with the Listing Rules. The Committee is free to 
seek external professional advice on matters within their purview when necessary.

Internal Controls
In addition to the statutory requirements for an external audit, Nestlé Lanka PLC 
complies with best practices as laid down by the Nestlé Group. To ensure such 
conformity, the company conducts regular reviews and is also monitored by multi-
tiered audits conducted by the Group’s international and regional auditors from 
time to time, as deemed appropriate.

Internal audits are carried out regularly by the Company’s internal auditors, 
who report directly to the Finance Director whilst also being accountable to the 
Managing Director.
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Risk Management
Nestlé has always recognised its obligation towards the occupational health and 
safety of its employees, as well as of community members directly or indirectly 
involved in the Company's operations. Equally important is the Company's obligation 
to protect shareholders’ interests, by managing risks to minimise potential financial 
loss. In order to manage these risks, the Company has implemented the following 
procedures:

 Strict compliance with local laws

 Clear accountability and active management leadership

 Behavioural-based safety management

 Credible market and site safety organisation

 Appropriate, systematic hazard assessments

 Technical standards for design, construction, operation and maintenance

 Emergency and contingency planning to minimise the impact of incidents

 Security management to protect products and assets

Employee Relations
One of our greatest assets is our employees. It is critical to our success to attract, 
retain, develop and motivate the best people with the right capabilities at all levels 
of our operations. We review our employee policies regularly and are committed 
to investing in training and development. We also carry out succession planning 
to ensure that the future needs of the business are considered and provided for. 
There are clear processes for understanding and responding to employees’ needs 
through Human Resource initiatives, staff surveys and regular communication of 
business developments.

Shareholders
Nestlé Lanka PLC aims to ensure that shareholders have access to relevant, 
up-to-date and consistent financial and non-financial information pertaining to 
the Company. The Annual Report and quarterly financial statements provide 
shareholders as well as prospective investors the required information to assess 
the Company's past performance and analyse its future prospects.

Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance Reporting

Disclosure Regarding the Board of Directors

Section Subject Applicable Rule
Compliance 
Status

Details

7.10.1(a) to (c) Non-Executive Directors Two or at least one third of the total number of 
Directors should be Non-Executive Directors

Compliant Four out of six Directors are 
Non-Executive Directors

7.10.2(a) Independent Directors Two or one third of Non-Executive Directors 
(whichever is higher) should be independent

Compliant Two of the four Non - Executive 
Directors are independent

7.10.2(b) Independent Directors Each Non-Executive Director should submit 
a declaration of independence / non-
independence in the prescribed format

Compliant The two Non-Executive Independent 
Directors, and two Non-Executive 
Directors have  submitted to the 
Company a declaration in the 
prescribed format

7.10.3(a) Disclosure relating to Directors Names of Independent Directors should be 
disclosed in the Annual Report

Compliant Please refer page 33 of the Annual 
Report 

7.10.3(c) Brief résumé of each Director in 
the Annual Report

A brief resume of each Director should be 
included in the Annual Report, including the 
area of expertise

Compliant Please refer pages 32 and 33 of the 
Annual Report 

7.10.4 Directors do not qualify as 
independent but are specified by 
the Board as independent

As outlined in section 7.10.3(c) of the listing 
rules

Not applicable Not applicable
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Disclosure Regarding the Remuneration and Remuneration Committee

Section Subject Applicable Rule
Compliance 
Status

Details

7.10.5(a) Composition of the Remuneration 
Committee

Shall comprise of Non-Executive Directors, 
a majority of whom can be independent

The Chairman of the Committee shall be a 
Non-Executive Director

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer page 43 of the Annual 
Report 

7.10.5(a) Remuneration Committee A listed company may be permitted to have 
the same Remuneration Committee if the 
parent company is also listed

Not applicable The parent company is not listed 
in Sri Lanka. As such, a separate 
Remuneration Committee has been 
formed

7.10.5(b) Disclosure of the functions of the 
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee shall 
recommend the remuneration payable to the 
Board and the Executive Officers

Compliant Please refer page 43 of the Annual 
Report 

7.10.5(c) Disclosure in the Annual Report Names of the Directors comprising the 
Remuneration Committee

A Statement of Remuneration Policy

The Aggregate remuneration paid to Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer page 43 of the Annual 
Report

Please refer page 77 of the Annual 
Report

Disclosure Regarding the Audit Committee

Section Subject Applicable Rule
Compliance 
Status

Details

7.10.6.(a) Composition of the Audit 
Committee

Shall comprise of Non–Executive Directors, a 
majority of whom can be independent

The Chairman of the Committee shall be a 
Non-Executive Director

The Chairman or a member should be 
a member of a recognised professional 
accounting body

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer page 42 of the Annual 
Report 
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Corporate Governance Reporting

7.10.6(a) 
   and (c)

Audit Committee A listed company may be permitted to have 
the same Audit Committee if the parent 
company is also listed

Not applicable The parent company is not listed in 
Sri Lanka. As such, a separate Audit 
Committee has been formed

7.10.6. (b) Functions of the Audit Committee Should be detailed as per section 7.10.6 (b) of 
the Listing Rules

Compliant Please refer page 42 of the Annual 
Report

7.10.6.(c) Disclosure in the Annual Report The names of the Directors comprising the 
Audit Committee

The basis of determination of the auditors’ 
independence

A report of the Audit Committee as per section 
7.10.6 (c) of the Listing Rules

Compliant

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer page 42 of the Annual 
Report

Disclosure Regarding the Related Party Transactions Review Committee

Section Subject Applicable Rule
Compliance 
Status

Details

9 Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee

The Company shall have a Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee

Compliant Related Party Transactions Review 
Committee duly appointed as per 
CSE Listing Rules

9.2.2 Composition of the Related Party 
Transactions Review Committee

Shall comprise a combination of Non-Executive 
Directors, Executive Directors and Independent 
Non-Executive Directors 

The Chairman of the Committee should be an 
Independent Non–Executive Director

Compliant

Compliant

Please refer page 37 of the Annual 
Report
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The Committee, appointed by the Board of Directors, comprises of two members, 
namely Ranjan Seevaratnam and Mahen Dayananda, both Non-Executive 
Independent Directors of the Company. The Committee is chaired by Ranjan 
Seevaratnam, who is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Sri Lanka and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and 
a former Partner of KPMG.

In discharging its responsibilities, the Audit Committee has unrestricted access 
to the Company’s management, books and records. The Committee supports the 
Board of Directors in its supervision of financial controls through a direct link to 
KPMG (external auditors) and the Nestlé Group Audit. The Nestlé Group Audit 
is a world-class audit department. It provides value adding assistance to top 
management in the markets and at the international headquarters.

The Audit Committee’s main duties include the following;

	Assisting the Board of Directors in reviewing the financial statements, to 
ensure that the financial reporting process is in compliance with the required 
standards;

	Reporting to the Board on the quality and acceptability of accounting policies 
and practices;

	Reviewing the Company’s internal controls, risk management process and 
process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations;

	Assessing the independence and the performance of the Company’s external 
auditors;

	Making recommendations to the Board pertaining to the appointment, 
reappointment and removal of external auditors;

	Approving the remuneration and the terms of engagement of the external 
auditors;

Page 33 of this Annual Report displays the profiles of the members of the Audit 
Committee. The members have the requisite financial knowledge and business 
acumen to carry out their roles effectively and to discuss matters that come within 
their purview independently and professionally.

The Committee met four times during the year under review as recorded in the 
table below. 

Date of the meeting
Attendance

Yes () / No ()

Attendance by 
invitation

Yes () / No ()

Ranjan
Seevaratnam

Mahen
Dayananda

Managing 
Director

Finance 
Director

19/02/2015    
12/05/2015    
11/08/2015    
05/11/2015    

The Managing Director and the Finance Director of the Company attended the 
meetings by invitation and the Secretary to the Board of Directors acted as the 
Secretary to the Committee. Internal and external auditors were invited to be 
present where appropriate at the deliberation of the Committee.

The Audit Committee has assessed and reviewed the effectiveness of the 
independent performance of the external auditors KPMG, and also recommended 
to the Board of Directors that KPMG be reappointed as Auditors for the financial 
year ending on 31 December 2016 subject to the approval of the shareholders at 
the next Annual General Meeting.

Having evaluated the prevailing processes and systems, the Audit Committee is 
satisfied that the internal controls of the Company provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the financial reporting, and that the requirements under the Listing Rules 
of the Colombo Stock Exchange have been met.
 

Ranjan Seevaratnam 
Chairman, Audit Committee 

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

23 February 2016

Report of the Audit Committee
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Report of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was appointed by the Board of Directors with 
the aim of recommending the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors 
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Committee comprises of three 
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mahen Dayananda and Ranjan Seevaratnam 
who are Independent Directors, and Suresh Narayanan, who is a member. Mahen 
Dayananda is Chairman of the Committee.

The Committee was established and assigned with the task of evaluating and 
assessing the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors and Chief 
Executive Officer of the Company. The Remuneration Policy of the Company 
is to be consistent and aligned with market reality to attract and retain qualified 
and competent personnel. The Committee evaluated the Executive Directors' 
remuneration and recommended the remuneration payable.

The Committee is assisted by the Vice President – Finance and Control and 
Assistant Vice President - Human Resources in providing relevant information. 
The remuneration packages are linked to individual performances and are aligned 
with the Company’s remuneration policy. The Committee makes every effort to 
maintain the policy and attract and retain talent.

The Members of the Committee meet as and when necessary. During the year 
under review, the Committee met on 5 November 2015. The Managing Director of 
the Company, together with the Vice President - Finance and Control, and Assistant 
Vice President - Human Resources attended the said meeting by invitation. The 
Secretary to the Board attended this meeting in the capacity of Secretary to the 
Committee.

Mahen Dayananda
Chairman, Remuneration Committee

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC 

23 February 2016
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Director’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting

The Company's Financial Statements, presented in this report for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015, conform to the requirements of the Financial Reporting 
Standards and the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007. The Directors have confirmed 
that the Financial Statements presented by them give a true and fair view of the 
Company’s activities as at that date. The financial information is consistent with 
that in the Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors has initiated an efficient and concise system of internal 
control. It also includes internal checks and internal audits, along with financial and 
other controls required to carry on the business smoothly, whilst safeguarding its 
assets in a secure, practical, accurate and reliable manner.

The Company's Auditors, KPMG, review and carry out random checks on the 
internal controls wherever considered necessary towards endorsing their opinion 
on the Financial Statements.

The management's responsibilities on Financial Reporting is overseen by the Board 
of Directors / Audit Committee through regular review meetings and approving of 
financial information contained in the Annual Report, along with the preparation 
and presentation of the Financial Statements.

KPMG are the auditors appointed by the shareholders. They have audited the 
Financial Statements submitted by the Board of Directors, as well as all supporting 
Financial Records and minutes from the shareholders meetings and the Directors 
meetings, and have expressed their opinion which is published under the 
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 62.

By Order of the Board.

Keerthi Pathiraja
Company Secretary 

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

23 February 2016
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the 
Affairs of the Company

The Directors of Nestlé Lanka 
PLC take pleasure in presenting 
to the shareholders their Report 

together with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended 

31 December 2015 and the Auditors’ 
Report thereon.

Directors
Etienne Benet (resigned with effect from 16 October 2015), Suresh Narayanan 
(appointed with effect from 16 October 2015), Ganesan Ampalavanar (resigned 
with effect from 31 January 2015), Shivani Hegde (appointed with effect from 1 
February 2015), Shobinder Duggal, Jagdish Kumar Singla, Mahen Dayananda, and 
Ranjan Seevaratnam are the Directors of the Company.

In terms of Article 56, 57 and 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, 
Shobinder Duggal will retire and being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

Ranjan Seevaratnam will retire pursuant to Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007 as he attained the age of 70 years on 24 September 2013. Resolution, 
in terms of Section 211, to the effect that the age limit of 70 years referred to in 
Section 210 of the Companies Act shall not be applicable to Ranjan Seevaratnam, 
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Review for the Year
The Chairman's Message and Managing Director’s Review on pages 24 and 26 
highlights the Company's affairs and the performance of the period under review.  

Results and Dividends
The profit achieved by the Company on a net turnover of Rs. 35.9 billion, after 
provisioning for all known liabilities and depreciation on fixed assets, but before 
taxation, amounts to Rs. 5,425 million. After deducting a sum of Rs. 1,301 million 
as taxation, the profit was Rs. 4,124 million. The profit available for appropriation 
was Rs. 3,984 million, which is obtained by adding the profit of Rs. 515 million 
brought forward from the past year, and deducting the Other Comprehensive 
Expenses amounting to Rs. 17 million and Super Gain Tax amounting to Rs. 638 
million in compliance with the Finance Act No. 10 of 2015.  
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The Income Statement for the year 2015 is given on page 63.

The Directors of Nestlé Lanka PLC declared an interim dividend of Rs. 34.50 per 
share which will be paid to the shareholders of the Company on 15 March 2016, 
and were pleased to recommend a final dividend of Rs. 30.00 per share, payable 
on 16 May 2016, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the upcoming 
Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 5 May 2016. 

Stated Capital
The stated capital of the Company as at 31 December 2015 amounts to Rs. 537, 
254, 630.

Activity
In 2015, the Company strengthened its product portfolio and its credentials as a 
leading nutrition, health and wellness company. It launched Nespray Nutri-Up, a 
Ready-To-Drink (RTD) product, made with local milk and fortified with Vitamins 
A and D to help tackle micronutrient deficiency. It also expanded its Nestlé 
Healthy Kids Programme, which partners with the Education Ministry, to educate 
thousands more school children on nutrition and conducted a number of other 
public awareness campaigns in parallel to teach adults about healthy diets and 
living an active lifestyle.

Continuing to strengthen its Devilled noodle range, the Company launched 
Sri Lanka’s first green chilli noodle Maggi Devilled X-Tra Green Chilli in the first 
quarter. Nestlé Docello Dessert Solutions, available in chocolate mousse, panna 
cotta and crème bruleé, was introduced to the market in the second quarter.  
These dessert mixes allow culinary professionals to make quality desserts quicker 
and at lower cost. 

90% of the Nestlé products sold in Sri Lanka are manufactured locally at the 
Company’s state-of-the-art, multi-product factory in Kurunegala. These include 
renowned brands like Nestomalt, Milo, Nespray, Nescafé, Nestum, Milkmaid, 
Cerelac and the Maggi range of products, such as Maggi bouillon cubes, Maggi 
noodles, Maggi seasoning and Maggi Coconut Milk Powder.

All locally produced Nestlé products are manufactured under the exclusive 
permission of the Trademark owner, Societé de Produits Nestlé S.A. Vevey, 
Switzerland. 

We are proud to note that in 2015 the Company was also recognised for its 
performance and contribution to the rural economy.

The Company received an award for ‘Empowering Dairy Development in Sri Lanka’ 
from the Minister of Public Administration in recognition of our work in developing 
Sri Lanka’s dairy industry.

This was followed by more wins at the Presidential Export Awards, where Nestlé 
was awarded ‘Best Exporter of the Coconut & Coconut Based Product Sector’ and 
‘Best Exporter of the Food & Other Beverages Product Sector’ for its contribution 
to Sri Lanka’s exports. 

Maggi was also voted ‘Food Brand of the Year’ and ‘Youth Food Brand of the 
Year’ by consumers at the SLIM - Nielsen People’s Awards. This marks the third 
consecutive year the brand has won both titles. 

In December, the Company was ranked among the top 20 best performing 
companies in Sri Lanka by Business Today and LMD (Lanka Monthly Digest).

Directors’ Interest 
a) In contracts

Details of Directors’ interest in contracts of the Company are disclosed below. The 
Directors do not have direct or indirect interests or proposed contracts other than 
those disclosed hereunder.

The Directors have disclosed all material interests in contracts (if any) involving 
the Company and have refrained from participating when decisions were taken.
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the 
Affairs of the Company

Interest Register
Suresh Narayanan  - Transactions with affiliates or related parties. 

    Disclosed in notes 16, 22 and 23 of pages 84, 92 and 94 to the financial statements.

Shivani Hegde  - Transactions with affiliates or related parties.   

    Disclosed in notes 16, 22 and 23 of pages 84, 92 and 94 to the financial statements.

Shobinder Duggal  - Transactions with affiliates or related parties.   

    Disclosed in notes 16, 22 and 23 of pages 84, 92 and 94 to the financial statements.

Jagdish Kumar Singla - Transactions with affiliates or related parties.   

    Disclosed in notes 16, 22 and 23 of pages 84, 92 and 94 to the financial statements.

     
       
Mahen Dayananda  - No transaction with affiliates

    Directorships in other companies:

Company Position

Transaction 
(procurement) 
during the year

(Rs.’000s)

Balance (due 
to) / from as at  

31 December 2015 
(Rs.’000s)

Total Tea Concepts (Private) Ltd Chairman No Nil

Indo Asia Teas (Pvt) Ltd Chairman No Nil

Sri Lanka Business Development Centre Chairman No Nil

Pegasus Hotels of Ceylon PLC Director No Nil

Bukit Darah PLC Director No Nil
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Ranjan Seevaratnam - No transaction with affiliates
    
    Directorships in other companies:

Company Position

Transaction 
(procurement) 
during the year

(Rs.’000s)

Balance (due 
to) / from as at  

31 December 2015 
(Rs.’000s)

Acme Printing & Packaging PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Diesel & Motor Engineering  PLC Non-Executive Director 17,800 562

Lanka Aluminium Industries PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Tea Small Holders Factories PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Tokyo Cement PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Colombo Fort Land and Building Co. PLC Non-Executive Director No Nil

Omega Line (Pvt) LTd Non-Executive Director No Nil

Hayleys Agriculture Holdings (Pvt) Ltd Non-Executive Director No Nil

Hayleys Consumer (Pvt) Ltd Non-Executive Director No Nil

Hayleys Advantis (Pvt) Ltd Non-Executive Director No Nil

Metecno Lanka (Pvt) Ltd Non-Executive Director 921 750

The Distilleries Co. of Sri Lanka Non-Executive Director No Nil

Darley Butler (Pvt) Ltd. Non-Executive Director No Nil

b) In shares of the Company  

Director

Shares Held

Management
1 January 

2015
31 December 

2015

Executive Shivani Hegde Nil Nil Yes

Executive Jagdish Kumar Singla Nil Nil Yes

Non-Executive
Suresh Narayanan  Nil Nil No

Shobinder Duggal Nil Nil No

Independent 
Non-Executive

Mahen Dayananda 1,000 1,000 No

Ranjan Seevaratnam Nil Nil No
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors on the 
Affairs of the Company

Corporate Governance
The corporate governance practices of the Company are set out in detail on 
page 36.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of property, plant and equipment, additions made during the year and 
depreciation thereof for the year are shown in note 12 to the financial statements 
on page 80.

Donations
Total donations made by the Company amounted to a sum of Rs. 0.3 million.

Auditors
KPMG, Chartered Accountants, have been the Company's auditors in the past and 
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment for the next year. The auditor’s 
fees are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements on page 77.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any relationship (other 
than that of an Auditor), with the Company other than those disclosed in note 7 to 
the financial statements on page 77.

The Auditors also do not have any interest in the Company.

Accounting Policies
The Company prepared its annual financial statements according to the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards (SLFRS / LKAS). All relevant applicable standards have been 
followed in presenting the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 
December 2015.

Material Issues
There were no material issues pertaining to employees and industrial relations.

Risk Factors
The Directors of the Company have reviewed the risk management structure of 
the Company and confirm that there are no material risk factors foreseeable.

Conclusion
The Directors of Nestlé Lanka PLC wish to convey their gratitude and appreciation 
to the management and staff of the Company for their dedicated and untiring 
cooperation during the year under review. 

For and on behalf of the Board.

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

Shivani Hegde    Jagdish Kumar Singla
Managing Director    Director, Finance & Control 

Keerthi Pathiraja
Company Secretary

23 February 2016
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A uniquely Sri Lankan product that 
has been a household name in the 

country since 1964, Nestomalt today 
is Sri Lanka's best loved, iconic malted 

food drink brand. 

Nestomalt was first developed by Nestlé in Australia and later 
introduced to our island. Sri Lankans fell in love with the product -  
consuming it mainly as an energising and nutritious enhancer with 

the nation’s staple drink, tea. 

Bringing 'Power, Strength and Energy' from the golden goodness 
of malt, the essential nutrients of milk and energy releasing B 

vitamins, Nestomalt offers our Sri Lankan consumers the perfect 
blend of nutritious energy in one cup. 

Nestomalt is only manufactured in Sri Lanka today and remains 
Nestlé Lanka’s biggest brand.

Our Most Loved Brands
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Milo was developed in the 1930s during 
the depression in Australia as a direct 

response to the fact that children were 
not receiving enough nutrients from 

their daily diet.

Thomas Mayne, a Nestlé Engineer, created the nutritious and 
delicious beverage using local milk knowledge and Swiss cocoa 

expertise. He named the drink Milo after the Greek mythical 
character Milo, who was known for his strength. 

Milo is the world's leading chocolate malt beverage today, and a 
much loved and trusted brand that is deeply rooted in Sri Lanka. 

Renowned for its unique and delicious chocolate malt taste, Milo is 
enjoyed by generations of Sri Lankan children.

Made from local fresh milk and fortified with vitamins and 
minerals, Milo stands for wholesome and balanced nutrition. 

Inspiring consumers to achieve their very best by supporting their 
drive to succeed, the brand embodies the positive dimension of 

sports, energy and wellbeing. It has supported the development of 
school level sports in Sri Lanka for over two decades

Our Most Loved Brands
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Maggi joined Nestlé’s portfolio of 
products in 1947, when we merged 

with Swiss company Alimentana, 
which produced Maggi soups, bouillons 

and seasonings. Alimentana’s history 
dates back to 1884, when Julius Maggi 

developed a protein-rich dried soup to 
tackle malnutrition.

Maggi was launched in Sri Lanka in 1964 and is manufactured 
at our state-of-the-art factory in Kurunegala. Maggi noodles has 

been a trusted household favourite in the country for generations, 
winning the hearts of adults and children alike.

Its popular Classic noodles range - Maggi Chicken, Maggi Curry 
and Maggi Tikiri – is fortified with essential nutrients calcium 

and vitamin A. The much loved noodles are also enhanced with 
added vegetables and popular home ingredients typically found in 

Sri Lankan kitchens, such as turmeric, nutmeg, coriander, cumin 
and cardamom. 

In 1986, Nestlé Lanka decided to put its excess milk powder 
production capacity to good use and manufacture coconut milk in 
powder form, offering Sri Lankan housewives tasty convenience. 

The product, which we marketed under the Maggi brand, used 
exclusively Sri Lankan coconuts to ensure a fresh and delicious 

taste. 

Maggi Coconut Milk Powder is manufactured by Nestlé exclusively 
at our factory in Kurunegala today, supplying markets all over the 
world through Nestlé’s extensive global distribution channels. As 
one of the largest exporters of coconut milk powder in the world, 

we have a far reaching impact on Sri Lanka’s rural economy.  

Maggi Rasa Musu is an all-purpose seasoning, which has captured 
the taste of real ingredients like onion and garlic, and select 

Sri Lankan spices such as nutmeg, cumin seeds, fenugreek, 
chilli and turmeric. It can be used in a wide variety of traditional 

Sri Lankan dishes to enhance taste. This easy to use, affordable 
product is also fortified with iron, ensuring your dish is not just 

tastier but healthier too. 

Our Most Loved Brands
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In terms of value of products sold, 
Nestlé is the world’s largest milk 

company. Many people aren’t aware 
that our beginnings were based on 

milk products and that one of our first 
products was Milkmaid. 

Nestlé merged with the Anglo-Swiss Condensed Milk Company in 
1905 to become the global company it is today. The Anglo-Swiss 

Condensed Milk Company started operations in 1866 when it 
opened the first European condensed milk factory in Switzerland, 

and started selling condensed milk under the Milkmaid brand. 
Condensed milk was considered a safe, long-life alternative to 

fresh milk at the time.
 

Nestlé’s first product in Sri Lanka in 1906 was also Milkmaid. Since 
then, for over 100 years, Milkmaid has been a household favourite 

in Sri Lanka and is synonymous with mouthwatering desserts 
today. 

 
In 1916, Nestlé acquired Norwegian dairy company Egron, which 

had patented a spray-drying process for producing milk powder. 
We soon added this new product to our portfolio. 

 
We began manufacturing milk powder in Sri Lanka under the 
Nespray brand in the 1980s. Delicious and serving Sri Lankan 

families for generations, Nespray Everyday is fortified with iron, 
vitamin A and vitamin D to complement the goodness of milk and 

help address key micronutrient deficiencies. 
 

Nespray Nutri-Up Ready-To-Drink (RTD) is the latest addition to 
the Nespray portfolio, fortified with vitamins A and D.  All three 
products – Milkmaid, Nespray Everyday and Nespray Nutri-Up – 
are manufactured at our state-of-the-art manufacturing facility in 

Kurunegala, offering the goodness of local fresh milk collected 
from close to 20,000 dairy farmers every day.

Our Most Loved Brands
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The rich taste of Sri Lanka’s favourite 
coffee reflects its rich history. Nescafé  
is the brainchild of Max Morgenthaler, 

who began work on it in 1929, when the 
Brazilian government asked Nestlé to 

find an outlet for its huge coffee surplus. 
In 1938 Nescafé was launched as a 

‘powdered extract of pure coffee’ that 
retains coffee’s natural flavour, but can 

be prepared by simply adding hot water.  

Today Nescafé is the world’s number one most trusted and 
enjoyed coffee. Over the years, Nescafé has evolved further to 
capture even more of the natural aroma and flavour from every 

coffee bean. Today, consumers around the world enjoy the quality, 
flavour, aroma, convenience and natural goodness of Nescafé 

coffee in many different choices.

In 2010, Nestlé launched the Nescafé Plan to develop the 
company’s sustainable supply chains in cocoa and coffee, improve 

social conditions in farming communities, and ensure their 
profitability. 

Our Most Loved Brands
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Financial Report

In Thousands of Rupees 2015 2014

Revenue  35,854,802  32,902,885 

Profit before Taxation (PBT)  5,425,507  4,765,797 

Profit after Taxation  4,124,324  3,786,893 

Capital Expenditure  875,766  1,198,065 

Shareholders Funds  4,521,636  4,087,928 

PBT as a % of Revenue 15% 14%

Return on Capital Employed 94% 91%

Key Ratios

Current Ratio  1.02  0.97 

Net Assets Per Share  84.16  76.09 

Earnings Per Share  76.77  70.49 

Dividend Per Share  64.50  68.50 

Dividend Cover  1.19  1.03 

Dividend Payout Ratio 84% 97%

Market Value Per Share - Highest  2,390.00  2,444.00 

                                       - Lowest  1,960.40  1,890.00 

                                       - Average  2,149.77   2,061.74 

                                       - Last Traded  2,049.50  2,105.00 

Number of Personnel 822  784 

Company Highlights
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Independent Auditors’ Report

KPMG 
(Chartered Accountants)
32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,
P. O. Box 186,
Colombo 00300,
Sri Lanka.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NESTLÉ LANKA PLC

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nestle Lanka PLC (“the Company”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31st December 2015, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flow for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information set out on pages 63 to 103 of the annual report.   

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as Board determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Board, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.       

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31st 
December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we state the following:
a) The basis of opinion and scope and limitations of the audit are as stated above.  
b) In our opinion:

- we have obtained all the information and explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as appears from 
our examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company,

- the financial statements of the Company, comply with the requirements of section 151 of the Companies Act.

Chartered Accountants
Colombo
23rd February 2016 
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Statement of Profit or Loss and 
Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended 31 December Note 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Revenue 5 35,854,802 32,902,885

Cost of Sales  (21,380,568)  (20,767,394)

Gross Profit 14,474,234 12,135,491

Other Operating Income / (Expenses) 6 (13,454) 92,415

Marketing, Selling and Distribution Expenses (6,918,332) (5,502,378)

Administrative Expenses (2,124,675) (1,966,435)

Result from  Operating Activities 7 5,417,773 4,759,093

Finance Income 38,328 33,426

Finance Expenses (30,594) (26,722)

Net Finance Income / (Expenses) 8  7,734  6,704 

Profit Before Taxation 5,425,507 4,765,797

Income Tax Expense 9 (1,301,183) (978,904)

Profit for the Year 4,124,324 3,786,893

Other Comprehensive Income / (Expenses)

Actuarial Loss for the Year - Net of Tax  (16,762)  (46,390)

Total Comprehensive Income  4,107,562  3,740,503 

Basic Earnings Per Share  (Rs.) 10  76.77  70.49 

“Notes to the Financial Statements,” set out on pages 69 to 103, form an integral part of the financial statements. Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December Note 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

ASSETS

Non-Currrent Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 12  5,477,442  5,208,556 

Capital Work-In-Progress 13  143,597  206,381 

 5,621,039  5,414,937 

Current Assets

Inventories 14  3,322,433  2,991,408 

Trade and Other Receivables 15  2,107,037  1,816,426 

Amounts Due from Related Parties 16  203,975  304,641 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 17  867,563  282,517 

 6,501,008  5,394,992 

Total Assets  12,122,047  10,809,929 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Stated Capital 18  537,255  537,255 

Retained Earnings  3,984,381  3,550,673 

 4,521,636  4,087,928 

Non-Current Liabilities

Retirement Benefit Obligations 19  522,240  514,740 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 20  699,452  640,972 

 1,221,692  1,155,712 

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 21 4,137,446  3,803,636 

Amounts Due to Related Parties 22  713,686  748,650 

Income Tax Payable  942,057  705,691 

Dividends Payable  137,220  102,956 
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As at 31 December Note 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Bank Overdrafts 17  448,310  205,356 

 6,378,719  5,566,289 

Total Liabilities 7,600,411  6,722,001 

Total Equity and Liabilities  12,122,047  10,809,929 

“Notes to the Financial Statements,” set out on pages 69 to 103, form an integral part of the financial statements. Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

I certify that these financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

Jagdish Kumar Singla
Vice President - Finance & Control

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

Signed for and on behalf of the Board.

NESTLÉ LANKA PLC
Colombo

 

Shivani Hegde      Ranjan Seevaratnam
Managing Director      Director      
                                  
23  February 2016.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Stated Capital 
Rs.‘000s 

Retained Earnings
Rs.‘000s

Total
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January 2014 537,255 3,678,403 4,215,658

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit for the Year  - 3,786,893 3,786,893

Other Comprehensive Expenses  - (46,390) (46,390)

Transactions with Owners of the Company 
Recognised Directly in Equity

Interim Dividend for 2013 - (1,719,215) (1,719,215)

Final Dividend for 2013 - (1,504,313) (1,504,313)

First Interim Dividend for 2014 - (644,705) (644,705)

Balance as at 31 December 2014 537,255 3,550,673 4,087,928

Balance as at 1 January 2015 537,255 3,550,673 4,087,928

Super Gain Tax (Note 9.3)  -   (638,365) (638,365)

Adjusted Balance as at 1 January 2015 537,255 2,912,308 3,449,563

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit for the Year  -   4,124,324 4,124,324

Other Comprehensive Expenses  -   (16,762) (16,762)

Transactions with Owners of the Company 
Recognised Directly in Equity

Second Interim Dividend for 2014  -   (1,531,176) (1,531,176)

Final Dividend for 2014  -   (1,504,313) (1,504,313)

Balance as at 31 December 2015 537,255 3,984,381 4,521,636

“Notes to the Financial Statements,” set out on pages 69 to 103, form an integral part of the financial statements. Figures in brackets indicate deductions.66



Statement of Cash Flows 

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Profit before Taxation  5,425,507  4,765,797 

Adjustments for;

Depreciation  602,523  548,357 

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment  -   10,882 

Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  (31,100)  (47,342)

Amortisation of Staff Loan Interest  17,929  16,941 

Interest Expense  30,594  25,464 

Interest Income  (28,870)  (33,121)

Inventory Written Off  120,309  130,816 

Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivable  7,696  10,785 

Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligations  98,890  162,090 

Net Fair Value Loss on Derivatives  -   894 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  6,243,478  5,591,563 

Working Capital Changes

Increase in Inventories  (462,235)  (485,800)

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables  (197,472)  196,415 

Increase in Trade and Other Payables  309,746  743,712 

Cash Generated from Operations  5,893,517  6,045,890 

Interest Paid  (30,594)  (25,464)

Income Tax paid  (999,988)  (692,469)

Super Gain Tax Paid  (638,365)  -  

Retirement Benefit Obligation Paid  (114,670)  (181,210)

Net Cash Flows Generated from Operating Activities  4,109,900  5,146,747 
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As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment  (812,982)  (1,166,118)

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment  35,457  49,424 

Interest Received  10,941  16,182 

Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities  (766,584)  (1,100,512)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Dividends Paid  (3,001,224)  (3,852,993)

Net Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities  (3,001,224)  (3,852,993)

Net Increase in Cash and  Cash Equivalents  342,092  193,242 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  77,161  (116,081)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the  End of the Year (Note 17)  419,253  77,161 

Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

Cash in Hand and Balances with Bank  867,563  282,517 

Bank Overdrafts  (448,310)  (205,356)

 419,253  77,161 

“Notes to the Financial Statements,” set out on pages 69 to 103, form an integral part of the financial statements. Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Statement of Cash Flows 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Reporting Entity

Nestlé Lanka PLC is a company incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka and listed 
in the Colombo Stock Exchange. The registered office and the principal place of 
business is located at 440, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10. The Company is in 
the food and beverage industry. 

The ultimate parent and holding company is Nestlé S.A.

1.1  Principal Activities and Nature of Operations

Principal activities of the Company include manufacturing, marketing, selling and 
distribution of food and beverages products. The Company is also involved in the 
export of locally manufactured food and beverage products. 

2 Basis of Preparation    

2.1  Statement of Compliance

Nestlé Lanka PLC has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (LKAS and SLFRS) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, the requirements of the Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007 and the Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing Standards Act No. 19 of 
1995.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 23 February 
2016. 

2.2  Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis and applied 
consistently, with no adjustments being made for inflationary factors affecting the 
financial statements except for;  

 Liability for the Defined Benefit Obligation, recognised at the present value of 
the Defined Benefit Obligation, net of plan assets.

 Liabilities for the cash settled share-based payment arrangements, measured 
at fair value.

 Derivative financial instruments, measured at fair value.

2.3  Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees, which is the 
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in Sri Lankan 
Rupees has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

2.4  Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect  income and expenses, reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and 
the application of policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances; the results of which form the basis of making judgments 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from 
other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

2.5  Going Concern

The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company has adequate resources 
to continue its operations in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial 
statements are prepared based on the going concern concept.

When preparing the financial statements, the Directors have assessed the ability 
of the Company to continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future and do 
not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of trading, taking in to account all 
available information about the future.

  

3 Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these financial statements, except following,

The Company adopted the following alternative accounting treatment,
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Statement of Alternative Treatment (SoAT) on Accounting for Super Gain 
Tax

As per the Provisions of Part III of the Finance Act No. 10 of 2015 which was 
certified on 30 October 2015, the Company is liable for Super Gain Tax of Rs. 638 
million.

According to the Act, the Super Gain Tax shall be deemed to be an expenditure in 
the Financial Statements relating to the year of assessment which commenced 
on 1 April 2013. The Act supersedes the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, hence the expense of Super Gain Tax is accounted in accordance with 
the requirements of the said Act as recommended by the Statement of Alternative 
Treatment (SoAT) on Accounting for Super Gain Tax issued by The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, dated 24 November 2015.

This SoAT supersedes paragraph 46 of LKAS 12–‘Income Tax’. Further, this SoAT 
must be applied by all companies who are liable to pay Super Gain Tax as required 
under Part III of the Finance Act without any option.

As per the SoAT, Super Gain Tax expense is deemed to be an expenditure for the 
year ended 31 December 2013, it should be recorded as an adjustment to the 
opening retained earnings reported in the Statement of Changes in Equity as at 1 
January 2015.

3.1  Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling 
at the date of the transaction.  

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting 
date are translated to Sri Lankan Rupees at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that 
date.  Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost 
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the 
transaction. 

3.2  Financial Instruments

a) Non-derivative Financial Assets
The Company initially recognises loans, receivables and deposits on the date that 
they are originated. All other financial assets are recognised initially on the trade 
date, which is the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the 
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the 
contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially 
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred.

Financial assets and liabilities are netted-off and the net amount is presented in 
the Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, the Company has a legal 
right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are recognised 
initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, loans and receivables are recognised at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other receivables, including staff loans 
receivable and cash and cash equivalents.

c) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances and call deposits with a 
maturity period of less than three months. For the purpose of the Statement of 
Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts, short 
term borrowings and short term investments.

d) Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the date at which the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company 
derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or expired.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial 
liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less 
any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these 
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, and bank 
overdrafts.

e) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency 
risk exposure. Derivatives are recognised at fair value while attributable transaction 70



costs are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive 
Income as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at 
fair value and changes therein are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income. 

f) Stated Capital
Ordinary shares of the Company are classified as equity.

3.3  Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Recognition and Measurement
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 
asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct 
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working 
condition for their intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the 
items and restoring the site on which they are located.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises major components 
having different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of Property, 
Plant and Equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are 
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of 
Property, Plant and Equipment, and are recognised net within “Other Operating 
Income” in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

b) De-Recognition
The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised 
on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. The gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an item of Property, 
Plant and Equipment is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income when the item is derecognised.

c) Subsequent Expenditure
The cost of replacing part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised 
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured 
reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of Property, Plant and Equipment are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
as incurred.

d) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
items of Property, Plant and Equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated 
useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Freehold Buildings   35 years
Plant and Machinery  10 - 25 years
Tools, Furniture and Office Equipment 5 years
Motor Vehicles   5 years
Information Systems (IS) Equipment 3 - 5 years       

Depreciation on asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the earlier 
of the date that the assets are classified as held for sale and the date that the 
assets are derecognised.
 
The useful lifetime, depreciation methods and residual values are reassessed 
annually or on an earlier date where any circumstances indicate such assessment 
is required.

Improvements on leasehold buildings and buildings constructed on leasehold land 
are depreciated over the lower of their useful economic life or unexpired period 
of lease.

e) Capital Work-In-Progress
Capital expenses incurred during the year on assets, which are not completed 
as at the date of Statement of Financial Position, are shown as Capital Work-In-
Progress whilst the capital assets which have been completed during the year and 
put to use have been transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment.

f) Leased Assets
Buildings constructed by the Company on leasehold land are capitalised and 
included under the category “Leasehold Building”.

3.4  Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, 
are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 
losses.

a) Basis of Recognition
An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and cost can be measured 
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reliably and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

b) Subsequent Expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic 
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
as incurred.

c) Amortisation 
Amortisation is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 
intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. 

d) Retirement and Disposal
An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use and subsequent disposal.

3.5  Impairment

a) Financial Asset
A financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at 
each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is 
impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset, and if the loss event that had an impact on the estimated future cash flows 
of that asset can be estimated reliably. 

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or 
delinquency by a debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, 
adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers and economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Company considers evidence of impairment for financial assets, measured 
at amortised cost, at both specific asset and collective level. All individually 
significant assets are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be 
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has 
been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually significant are 
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together assets with similar risk 
characteristics.

b) Non-Financial Asset
The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each date of 

the Statement of Financial Position to determine whether there is any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of 
assets that generate cashflows from continuing use that are largely independent 
of cashflows of other assets and cash generating units. 

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or 
its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of assets is the greater of its value in use and fair value 
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time of value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the 
recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset 
belongs.

(ii) Reversal of impairment 
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date 
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used 
to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
 
3.6  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Raw materials 
and purchased finished goods are valued at purchase cost on First in First Out 
(FIFO) basis. In the case of manufactured inventories and work-in-progress, cost 
includes all direct expenditure and production overheads based on the normal level 
of activity.  

Net realisable value is the price at which inventories can be sold in the normal 
course of business after allowing for the cost of realisation and, where appropriate, 
the cost of conversion from their existing state to a finished condition. Provision 
is made where necessary for obsolescence, slow-moving and defective stocks.72



3.7  Employee Benefits

a) Defined Benefit Plan 
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined 
contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit 
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and 
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The fair 
value of any plan asset is deducted. The Company determines the Net Interest 
Expense / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) for the period by 
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the 
beginning of the annual period to the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset), taking 
into account any change in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a 
result of contributions and benefit payments. 

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary, M/s Towers Watson 
India Pvt Ltd, using the "Projected Unit Credit Method". When the calculation 
results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present 
value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the 
plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. In order to calculate the 
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum 
funding requirements that apply to any plan in the Company. An economic benefit 
is available to the Company if it is realisable during the life of the plan, or on 
settlement of the plan liabilities.

Re-measurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and 
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset 
ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Company recognises them immediately in 
Other Comprehensive Income. All other expenses related to defined benefit plans 
is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed, the portion of the changed benefit 
related to past service by employees is recognised immediately in profit or loss 
when the plan amendment occurs.

The liability to Retirement Benefit Obligation under the payment of Gratuity Act No. 
12 of 1983 is a defined benefit plan covering 816 employees of the Company. The 
pre-1996 liability is unfunded and provided for by way of an accounting provision in 
the financial statements of the Company, in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard No.19 – Employee Benefits (LKAS 19). The liability subsequent to this 
date is funded by way of an insurance policy.

An annual valuation of the fund at AIA Insurance PLC (formally AVIVA NDB 
Insurance PLC) is carried out by a certified actuary using the “Projected Unit Credit  
Method”.

The movement of the obligation during the year and assumptions used for actuarial 
valuation are disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.

b) Defined Contribution Plans – Mercantile Services Provident Society, 
Employee Provident Fund and Employee Trust Fund
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which 
an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal 
or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions 
to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an employee benefit 
expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
when they are due.

All employees of the Company are members of either the Mercantile Service 
Provident Society (MSPS) or Employee Provident Fund (EPF) to which the 
Company contributes 12%, and Employee Trust Fund (ETF), to which the Company 
contributes 3% of such employees’ wages or salary. 

In addition to the statutory contributions mentioned above, the Company 
commenced contributions of 2% (for employees over 5 years) & 5% (for 
employees over 10 years) to the MSPS under a new defined contribution scheme 
offered to employees joining after 1 January 2006 from July 2014 onwards.

c) Share-Based Payments
The Company participates in the Nestlé Restricted Stock Unit plan of Nestlé S.A, 
the parent company, where selected employees are granted rights to obtain the 
stock units of Nestlé S.A. This represents a cash settled share-based payments 
arrangement in accordance with SLFRS 2 Share Based payment. Accordingly, 
the grant-date fair value of stock units granted to employees is recognised as an 
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in liability over the period that 
the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards. Until the liability to 
the parent company is settled, the liability is re-measured at each reporting date 
and at the settlement date, with any changes in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income.

3.8  Liabilities and Provisions

Liabilities and provisions are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position 
when there is a present legal /constructive obligation as a result of the past events, 
the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits. Obligations payable at the demand of the creditor, or within 
one year of the reporting date, are treated as current liabilities in the Statement 
of Financial Position. Liabilities payable after one year from the reporting date are 
treated as non-current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.
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a) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared and 
approved for distribution.

3.9  Revenue

a) Sale of Goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. 
Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the 
associated cost and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably and there 
is no continuing management involvement with goods, and the amount of the 
revenue can be measured reliably.

Transfer of risks and rewards vary depending on the individual terms of the 
contract of sale.

3.10  Other Operating Income

a) Gain / Loss from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Any gains or losses on retirement or disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 
are recognised in the period in which the sale occurs and is classified as Other 
Operating Income or Expense.

(b) Other Income
Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

3.11  Expenses

Expense Recognition

a) Revenue Expenditure
The profit earned by the Company, as shown in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
and Other Comprehensive Income, is after providing for all known liabilities and for 
depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

For the purpose of presentation of the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Directors are of the opinion that the function of 
expenses method presents fairly the elements of the enterprise's performance, 
hence such presentation method is adopted.

b) Capital Expenditure
Expenditure incurred for the purpose of extending or improving assets of 

a permanent nature, by means to carry on the business or for the purpose of 
increasing the earning capacity of the business, has been treated as capital 
expenditure.

Gains or losses of revenue nature, on the disposal of Property, Plant and 
Equipment, have been accounted for in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income.

c) Operating Lease Payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease.

3.12  Finance Income and Finance Costs

Net financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings, interest receivable 
on funds invested and foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income on accrual basis unless collectability is in doubt.

All interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowings are expensed 
as incurred as part of net financing costs.

3.13  Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax 
is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which 
case it is recognised in equity.

a) Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date as per the provisions 
of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years.
 
b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method as per Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard 12 - Income Taxes (LKAS 12), providing for temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting 
purpose and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred 
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the 74



carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date.

3.14 Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No. 7 – Statement of Cash Flows (LKAS 7).

3.15 Related Party Transactions

Disclosure has been made in respect of the transactions in which one party has the 
ability to control or exercise significant influence over the financial and operating 
policies / decisions of the other, irrespective of whether a price is being charged 
or not.

The relevant details are disclosed in the respective Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

3.16 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year.

3.17 Segment Reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either 
in providing related products or services (business segment), or in providing 
products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical 
segment), which is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of 
other segments.

Nestlé Lanka PLC is primarily involved in the business of manufacturing, 
marketing, selling and distribution of food and beverage products. The entire 
business is organised as one segment for making operating decisions in assessing 
performance by the Chief Operating Decision Maker. Further, information of the 
business is reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker as a whole. Therefore 
the Board of Directors are of the opinion that there are no identifiable operating 
segments within the Company and therefore the disclosure requirements of 
SLFRS 8 will not be applicable to Nestlé Lanka PLC. 
 
3.18 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 

incurred, except to the extent that they are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset of Property, Plant and Equipment, 
in which case they are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

3.19 Comparative Information

Comparative information has been reclassified where necessary to conform to the 
current year’s presentation. 
        
3.20 Commitments and Contingencies

Contingencies are possible assets or obligations that arise from a past event and 
whose existence confirmed only on the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain 
future events which are beyond the Company’s control. 
         
3.21 Events Occurring After the Reporting Period

All material events occurring after the reporting period have been considered, 
disclosed and adjusted where applicable.

4 New Accounting Standard Issued But Not Effective as at the   
 Reporting Date

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka has issued the following new 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standard which will become applicable for financial periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 or at a later date.

Accordingly, this Standard has not been applied in preparing these financial 
statements. 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – SLFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

The objective of this SLFRS is to establish principles for the financial reporting 
of financial assets and financial liabilities, that will present relevant and useful 
information to users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, 
timing and uncertainty of an entity’s future cash flows. 

An entity shall apply this SLFRS to all items within the scope of LKAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The application of this standard has been currently deferred by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, consequent to the International Accounting 
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Standard Board’s (IASB) decision to defer the mandatory effective date of IFRS 9. 
SLFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018, with early adoption permitted.

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers

SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how 
much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition 
guidance, including LKAS 18 Revenue, LKAS 11 Construction Contracts. SLFRS 15 
is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with 
early adoption permitted.

5 Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Local Revenue  31,734,274  28,936,811 

Target Incentives  (248,116)  (208,319)

Commission to Agents  (150,243)  (109,085)

Local Revenue Net of Trade Discounts  31,335,915  28,619,407 

Exports  4,518,887  4,283,478 

 35,854,802  32,902,885 

6 Other Operating Income / (Expenses)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Impairment loss of Property Plant and Equipment  -    (10,882)

Gain / (Loss) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 31,100  47,342 

Net Foreign Exchange Gain / (Loss)  (86,568)  6,942 

Income from Scrap Sales  42,014  49,013 

 (13,454)  92,415 
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7 Results from Operating Activities 

7.0 Results from Operating Activities are Stated after Charging / (Crediting) All Expenses Including the Following:

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Depreciation  602,523  548,357 

Impairment Loss of Property, Plant and Equipment  -    10,882 

Inventory Write Off  120,309  130,816 

Technical Assistance Fee  1,513,875  1,317,825 

Lease Payment  809  540 

Auditors Remuneration     - Audit  3,350  3,100 

                                          - Audit related  100  500 

                                          - Non Audit  2,683  583 

Provision for Impairment of Trade Receivables 7,696 10,785

Legal Fees  10,966  10,699 

Directors' Fees  835  835 

Employees Benefit Expenses (Note 7.1)  2,089,608  1,980,187 

7.1 Employees Benefit Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Personnel Costs

Executive Directors' Emoluments  41,533 39,310

Salaries and Wages  1,383,162 1,282,239

Provision for Retirement Benefit Obligations  (Note 19.3)  98,890 162,090

Contributions to EPF, MSPS and ETF

Employees' Provident Fund and Mercantile Services Provident Society  110,390  101,347 

Employees' Trust Fund  29,522  26,325 

Other Benefits  426,111 368,876

 2,089,608 1,980,187 77



8 Net Finance Income / (Expenses)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Finance Income

Interest on Call Deposits  10,941  16,180 

Gain on Foreign Currency / Liquid Assets 9,458 305

Interest on Staff Loans  17,929  16,941 

 38,328  33,426 

Finance Expenses

Interest on Short Term Borrowings and Overdrafts  (30,580)  (25,464)

Loss on Foreign Currency / Liquid Assets  (14)  (364)

Net Fair Value loss on Derivatives  -     (894)

 (30,594)  (26,722)

Net Finance Income  7,734  6,704 

9 Income Tax Expense 

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Tax on Current Year Profits (Note 9.2)  1,236,185  779,482 

Deferred Tax Charge (Note 20)  64,998 199,422

 1,301,183  978,904 

9.1
  
(a) The corporate income tax rate applicable to Nestlé Lanka PLC is 28%, while 
qualifying export profits are taxed at a concessionary rate of 12%, and profits 
from the Ready-To-Drink milks business are taxed at the rate of 10%. Profits with 
respect to off-shore business earned in foreign currency are exempt from income 
tax.             

(b) The full benefit of capital allowances arising in terms of section 25 of the Inland 
Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 has been taken into account in determining income 
tax expense on profits for the year.  
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(c) Deferred tax has been computed using the income tax rate of 28%. 

(d) Investments made in fixed assets from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2014 on the expansion of the existing business is eligible for Qualifying Payment Relief (QPR) at 
the rate of 25% every year over a four year period.

9.2 Reconciliation Between Accounting Profit and Taxable Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Accounting Profit Before Tax        5,425,507           4,765,797 

Adjustments Relating to Disallowances           290,181              160,188 

Adjustments Relating to Capital Allowances         (222,579)            (674,944)

Profit from Tax Exempted Operations         (324,494)            (292,768)

Qualifying Payment Relief for Investment         (180,475)            (689,610)

Taxable Profit     4,988,140         3,268,663 

Income Tax at 10%             51,675                42,917 

Income Tax at  12%             52,274                42,576 

Income Tax at  28%         1,129,987              693,989 

Income Tax Expense     1,233,936            779,482 

Under Provision in respect of Previous Year               2,249                        -   

    1,236,185            779,482 
   

9.3 Super Gain Tax

As per the provisions of Part III of the Finance Act, No. 10 of 2015, which were 
certified on 30 October 2015, the Company is liable for Super Gain tax. According 
to the Act, the Super Gain Tax shall be deemed to be an expenditure in the 
financial statements relating to the year of assessment which commenced on 
1 April 2013. The Act supersedes the requirements of the Sri Lanka Accounting 

Standards, hence the expense of Super Gain Tax is accounted in accordance with 
the requirements of the said Act as recommended by the Statement of Alternative 
Treatment (SoAT) on Accounting for Super Gain Tax issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, dated 24 November 2015. The Company has 
paid Rs. 638 million as Super Gain Tax during the year. 

10 Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit for the year 
attributable to ordinary shareholders, divided by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of 
ordinary shares are given below:
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2015 2014

Profit attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs'000s)  4,124,324 3,786,893

Weighted Average Number of Shares 53,725,463 53,725,463

Basic Earnings Per Share  (Rs.)  76.77  70.49 

11 Dividend Per Share

a) The Directors have declared an interim dividend of Rs. 34.50 per share  on 23 
February 2016 and have also proposed a final dividend of Rs. 30.00 per share 
for the year ended 31 December 2015, to be  approved at the  Annual General 
Meeting to be held on 5 May 2016. In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standard Events After the Reporting Period (LKAS 10), the interim dividend and  
final dividend has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2015.

b) However, for the purpose of computing Dividend per Share, interim dividend of 
Rs. 1,853,528,474 (Rs. 34.50 per share) declared on 23 February 2016, and final 
dividend to be approved has been taken into consideration.

c) The dividend per share calculation is based on the total dividend attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of Rs. 3,465,292,364 (2014 – Rs. 3,680,194,216), divided by 
the number of ordinary shares as at the reporting date. 

 

12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold 
Land

Rs.‘000s

Freehold 
Buildings
Rs.‘000s

Leasehold 
Buildings
Rs.‘000s

Plant and 
Machinery
Rs.‘000s

Tools 
Furniture 

and office 
Equipments

Rs.‘000s

Motor 
Vehicles

Rs.‘000s

Information 
System 

Equipment
Rs.‘000s

Total
Rs.‘000s

Cost

Balance as at 1 January 2014  17,925  101,259  1,316,357  5,011,726  1,198,074  348,599  254,283  8,248,223 

Additions During the Year  -    17,921  467,622  304,612  164,046  3,600  24,866  982,667 

Transferred from Capital 
Work-In-Progress

 -    -    84,942  130,456  -    -    -    215,398 

Disposals During the Year  -    -    (1,874)  (16,962)  (26,298)  (72,108)  (36,103)  (153,345)

Balance as at 31 December 2014  17,925  119,180 1,867,047 5,429,832 1,335,822  280,091  243,046 9,292,943 
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Freehold 
Land

Rs.‘000s

Freehold 
Buildings
Rs.‘000s

Leasehold 
Buildings
Rs.‘000s

Plant and 
Machinery
Rs.‘000s

Tools 
Furniture 

and office 
Equipments

Rs.‘000s

Motor 
Vehicles

Rs.‘000s

Information 
System 

Equipment
Rs.‘000s

Total
Rs.‘000s

Depreciation    

Balance as at 1 January 2014  -    26,393  258,665  2,151,766  775,470  274,918  189,198  3,676,410 

Charge For the Year  -    2,647  38,631  300,862  146,364  33,249  26,604  548,357 

Impairment Loss  -    -    2,469  8,413  -    -    -    10,882 

On Disposals  -    -    (481)  (16,869)  (25,741)  (72,108)  (36,063)  (151,262)

Balance as at 31 December 2014  -    29,040  299,284  2,444,172  896,093  236,059  179,739  4,084,387 

Cost  -   

Balance as at 1 January 2015  17,925  119,180  1,867,047  5,429,832  1,335,822  280,091  243,046  9,292,943 

Additions During the Year  -    6,823  130,139  353,824  148,393  1,362  29,443  669,984 

Transferred from Capital Work-in-
Progress

 -    -    10,009  100,091  80,464  9,433  5,785  205,782 

Disposals During the Year  -    -    (8,046)  (27,966)  (37,994)  (55,102)  (20,511)  (149,619)

Balance as at 31 December 2015  17,925  126,003  1,999,149  5,855,781  1,526,685  235,784  257,763 10,019,090 

Depreciation  -   

Balance as at 1 January 2015  -    29,040  299,284  2,444,172  896,092  236,060  179,739  4,084,387 

Charge For the Year  -    3,076  55,762  323,055  166,667  26,432  27,531  602,523 

On Disposals  -    -    (8,030)  (27,608)  (37,343)  (51,770)  (20,511)  (145,263)

Balance as at 31 December 2015  -    32,116  347,016 2,739,619 1,025,416  210,722  186,759 4,541,648 

" Written Down Value  
as at 31 December 2014"

 17,925  90,140 1,567,763 2,985,660  439,729  44,032  63,307 5,208,556 

"Written Down Value 
as at 31 December 2015"

 17,925  93,887 1,652,133 3,116,162  501,269  25,062  71,004 5,477,442 
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Property, Plant and Equipment include fully depreciated assets which are in use; 
the cost of which as at the reporting date amounted to Rs. 1,917,634,145 (2014-
Rs. 1,738,684,804). 

The Property situated at No.440, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10 (Area- 45,230 
sq.ft.) was valued on 31 July 2009 by a chartered valuer. 

The carrying amounts of Freehold Land and Buildings  (three buildings), had it been 
revalued, amounted to:

Freehold Land   Rs. 669,200,000
Freehold Buildings  Rs.   68,800,000 

However, the effect on revaluation has not been considered in the financial 
statements; the said properties are stated at cost.

13 Capital Work-In-Progress 

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January  206,381  238,328 

Capitalised During the Year  (205,782)  (215,398)

Additions During the Year  142,998  183,451 

Balance as at 31 December  143,597  206,381 

14                Inventories  

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Raw Materials 824,906 706,328

Packing Materials  258,113  172,961 

Finished Goods  1,408,350  1,185,945 

Energy, Technical Materials  200,604  181,329 

Work-In-Progress  131,541  93,202 

 2,823,514  2,339,765 

Goods-In-Transit  532,532  680,325 

3,356,046 3,020,090

Less : Provision for Obsolete Inventories (Note 14.1) (33,613) (28,682)

3,322,433 2,991,408
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14.1 Provision for Obsolete Inventories

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January  28,682  36,774   

Charge During the year  4,931  (8,092)  

Balance as at 31 December  33,613  28,682 

15                Trade and Other Receivables

  

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Trade Receivables (Note 15.1)  1,603,110  1,344,807 

Other Receivables (Note 15.2)  503,927  471,619 

 2,107,037 1,816,426

15.1 Trade Receivables

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Trade Receivables 1,696,151 1,430,152

Less: Provision for Impaiment loss (Note 15.1.1) (93,041) (85,345)

 1,603,110 1,344,807

15.1.1 Provision for Impairment Loss

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January 85,345 74,560

Provision made During the Year 7,696 10,785

Balance as at 31 December 93,041 85,345
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15.2  Other Receivables 

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Prepayments  140,081 116,465

Refundable Deposits and Non Trade Receivables  45,196 48,676

Loans to Employees (Note 15.2.1)  318,650 306,478

 503,927 471,619

15.2.1 Loans to Employees 

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January 306,478 299,418

Granted During the Year  102,663 121,326

Repaid During the Year (90,491) (114,266)

Balance as at 31 December 318,650 306,478

Loans to employees are disbursed to officers of the Company excluding Directors. The quantum of each loan in excess of Rs. 20,000 has been granted to 367 officers 
(2014 - 381 officers).

16                Amounts Due from Related Parties  

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Nestlé UK Limited  18,546  37,996 

Nestlé (South Africa) (Pty) Limited  -    197 

Nestlé S.A  -    2,238 

Nestlé (Thai) Limited  -    197 

Nestlé Australia Limited  964  9,254 
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As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Nestrade S.A  17,517  47,752 

Nestlé Png Limited  -    8,556 

Nestlé Middle East FZE  83,767  74,584 

Nestlé India Limited  12,132  19,973 

Nestlé Jamaica Limited  14,679  32,032 

Nestlé Trinidad and Tobago Limited  44,581  37,742 

Nestlé Panama S.A  2,966  -   

Nestlé Caribbean Inc  5,365  5,511 

Nestlé EAR (Epz) Limited  -    99 

Nestlé Nigeria Plc  -    3,572 

Nestlé Egypt S.A.E  -    197 

Nestlé Tunisie Distribution SA  -    99 

Nestlé Korea Limited  -    986 

P.T Nestlé Indonesia  -    493 

Nestlé Japan Limited  3,458  20,559 

Nestlé Manufacturing (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd  -    1,558 

Nestlé Philippines, Inc  -    197 

Nestlé Singapore (Pte) Limited  -    849 

 203,975  304,641 

17                Cash and Cash Equivalents   

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Favourable Balances

Balances with Banks  50,315  282,463 

Money Market Placements  817,191  -   

85



As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Cash in Hand  57  54 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  867,563 282,517

Unfavourable Balances

Distributor Finance with recourse to Nestlé Lanka PLC (98,187) (88,003)

Bank Overdrafts (350,123) (117,353)

(448,310) (205,356)

Cash and Cash Equivalents  for the Statement of Cash Flows 419,253  77,161 

18                Stated Capital  

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

53,725,463 Ordinary Shares  537,255  537,255

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

19                Retirement Benefit Obligations 

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Pension Scheme

Present Value of Obligations  608,110  584,280 

Fair Value of Plan Assets  (106,560)  (72,330)

Present Value of Obligations  501,550  511,950 
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As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Gratuity Plan

Present Value of Obligations  510,070  475,520 

Fair Value of Plan Assets  (489,380)  (472,730)

Present Value  of Obligations / (Excess in Plan)  20,690  2,790 

Total Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations (Note 19.1)  1,118,180  1,059,800 

Fair Value of Plan assets (Note 19.2)  (595,940)  (545,060)

Total Retirement Benefit Obligations  522,240  514,740 

Employees who joined prior to 2006 and who hold a minimum 10 years of service, 
are entitled to pension upon retirement at the age of 55 years. Currently, 26 
employees who retired are drawing a monthly pension.

The liability to Retirement Benefit Obligation under the payment of Gratuity 
Act No. 12 of 1983, is a defined benefit plan covering 816 employees of the 
Company. The pre-1996 liability is unfunded and provided for by way of an 
accounting provision in the Financial Statements of the Company in accordance 
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard No.19 – Employee Benefits (LKAS 19). 
The liability subsequent to this date is funded by way of an insurance policy.

The plan is partially funded by a policy obtained from AIA Insurance Lanka PLC 
(formally known as AVIVA NDB Insurance PLC) on 31 December 1996. The policy 
covered only the Gratuity liability prior to June 2014 but was extended to cover the 
Pension liability as well from July 2014. AIA Insurance Lanka PLC has confirmed 

that the features of the policy satisfy the definition of a "qualifying insurance 
policy”. The contributions to the fund by the Company are based on Actuarial 
Valuations carried out by AIA Insurance Lanka PLC. The Company expects to 
pay Rs. 92.73 million as contributions to its gratuity plan for the period ended 31 
December 2015. Employees are not required to contribute to this fund.

Employees under the Pension scheme were provided an option to join a new 
Retirement Benefit scheme at the end of June 2014. From the 330 eligible 
employees, 205 accepted the new scheme offered, while 25 employees opted 
to remain under the old scheme. 100 employees with less than five years to 
retirement were offered the higher of the new scheme benefit and the pension 
under the old scheme. A past service cost of Rs. 64.35 million was charged to the 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 
31 December 2014 on account of this plan change.

19.1 Movement in the Present Value of the Defined Benefit Obligations:

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January  1,059,800  941,950 

Current Service Cost  56,660  51,960 

Past Service Cost  -    64,350 

Interest Cost  90,620  92,140 
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2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Remeasurements

Experience Adjustments  11,440  (21,350)

Actuarial  Losses from Changes in Financial Assumptions  20,880  82,820 

Benefits Paid by the Plan  (121,220)  (152,070)

Balance as at 31 December  1,118,180  1,059,800 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is as follows.
Pension Plan 6 years
Gratuity Plan 7 years

19.2 Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets: 

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January  545,060  472,520 

Contributions Paid into the Plan  90,940  123,350 

Benefits Paid by the Plan  (97,490)  (94,210)

Interest Income on Plan Assets  48,390  46,360 

Return of Plan Assets Lesser than Discount Rate  9,040  (2,960)

Balance as at 31 December  595,940  545,060 

19.3 The expense recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Current Service Cost  56,660  51,960 

Net Interest on Net Defined Benefit Liability  42,230  45,780 

Past Service Cost -  64,350 

 98,890  162,090 
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19.3.1 The expense is recognised in the following line items in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Cost of Sales  42,278  71,699 

Administrative Expenses  56,612  90,391 

 98,890  162,090 

19.4 Expected Benefit Payments

The Expected Benefit Payment for the year 
ending

Pension
Rs.‘000s

Gratuity
Rs.‘000s

Total
Rs.‘000s

31 December 2016  40,610  28,500  69,110 

31 December 2017  95,460  69,330  164,790 

31 December 2018  66,650  50,610  117,260 

31 December 2019  102,320  86,780  189,100 

31 December 2020  120,130  106,060  226,190 

31 December 2021 to 2025  361,760  339,160  700,920 

19.5 The income / (expense) is recognised in other comprehensive income:

For the year ended 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Actuarial Loss  (32,320)  (61,470)

Surplus / (Deficit) in Actual Return on Plan Assets  9,040  (2,960)

Actuarial Loss for the year  (23,280)  (64,430)

Deferred Tax impact on Actuarial Loss 6,518 18,040

Actuarial Loss for the year - Net of Tax (16,762) (46,390)
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19.6 Actuarial Assumptions

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

2015 2014

(1) Rate of Discount 9.0% 9.0%

(2) Future Salary Increase 9.7% 9.7%

(3) Future Pension Increase 6.0% 6.0%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and 
mortality tables. The retirement age is assumed as 55 years.

The assumption made for the expected rate of return on assets have been derived 

by considering the best estimate for the expected long-term real rates of return 
and return from the main asset classes.

19.6.1 Sensitivity Analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the assumptions 
set out above.

The following table summarises how the impact on the defined benefit obligation 
at the end of the reporting period would have increased / (decreased) as a result 

of a change in the respective assumptions by 0.5%, holding other assumptions 
constant.

Defined Benefit Obligation

+0.5% -0.5%

Rate of Discount (32,220) 34,050

Future Salary Increase 34,650 (33,180)

Future Pension Increase 4,880 (4,590)

If the mortality rates are scaled up / down by one year, the impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation of the pension scheme will be (Rs. 4,820) and Rs. 4,880 respectively 
while there is no material impact on the Gratuity Liability.

19.7 The composition of Insurance Plan Asset is as follows: 

2015 2014

Reporting entity's own financial instruments Nil Nil

Property occupied by, or other assets used by, the reporting entity Nil Nil
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The investment portfolio of AIA Insurance Lanka PLC as at 31 December 2015 2014

Government Securities 39.00% 40.00%

Reverse Repurchase Agreements 6.00% 14.00%

Corporate Debt  29.00% 25.00%

Fixed Deposits 17.00%  9.00%

Equity 6.00%  8.00%

Policy Holder Loans 3.00%  4.00%

An interim Return on Plan Assets of 8.44% was declared by AIA Insurance Lanka PLC for the year 2015. (2014 - 7.69%)

20                Deferred Tax Liabilities 

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Balance as at 1 January  640,972  459,590 

Charge for the year (Note 20.2)  58,480  181,382 

Balance as at 31 December (Note 20.1)  699,452  640,972 

20.1 Movement in Temporary Differences during the Year

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Temporary  Difference  Tax Effect  Temporary  Difference  Tax  Effect  

Property, Plant and Equipment  3,444,711  964,519  3,189,621  893,094 

Retirement Benefit Obligations                 (522,240)  (146,227)  (514,740)  (144,127)

Other Provisions                                    (424,429)  (118,840)  (385,696)  (107,995)

Net Deferred Tax Liabilities  2,498,042  699,452  2,289,185  640,972 

20.2 Deferred Tax Liability Provision/(Reversal) for the Year

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

 Profit for the Year  64,998  199,422 

 Other Comprehensive Income  (6,518)  (18,040)

 58,480  181,382 91



As proposed in the 2016 Budget, the Current Income Tax Rate of 28% will be reduced to 15%. However the Company has considered a tax rate of 28% for differed 
taxation, as the new rate is not yet substantially enacted as of the reporting date.

21                Trade and Other Payables   

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Trade Payables  2,836,199  2,564,807 

Derivatives - Forward Exchange Contract  -    894 

Other Payables  1,301,247  1,237,935 

4,137,446 3,803,636

22                Amounts Due to Related Parties   

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Nestlé Deutschland AG  2,186  1,975 

Nestlé Espana S.A  -    1,753 

Nestlé France  6,259  2,293 

Nestlé Waters Marketing & Distribution  4,476  9,273 

Nestlé UK Limited  487  576 

Nestlé Nederland B.V.  4,353  7,735 

Nestrade S.A.  10,479  2,355 

Servcom S.A  2,103  287 

Société des Produits Nestlé S.A.  99,594  80,644 

Nestlé Suisse S.A.  978  6,817 

Nestlé Operational Services Worldwide S.A.  12,037  9,652 

Nestlé Korea Limited  -    3,031 
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As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Nestlé India Limited  41,524  31,944 

Nestlé Products Sdn Bhd  17,730  25,325 

Nestlé Asean (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd  3,057  3,697 

Nestlé Manufacturing (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd  155,887  131,621 

Nestlé Phillippines Inc  139,486  149,159 

CPW Philippines, Inc  9,667  8,175 

Nestlé Business Service AOA Inc  964  -   

Nestlé Singapore (Pte) Limited  161,934  177,076 

Nestlé TC Asia-Pacific (Pte) Limited  -    28,176 

Nestlé R & D Centre (Pte) Limited  8,937  1,308 

Nestlé (Thai) Limited.  8,009  11,123 

Nestlé Australia Limited.  19,150  31,084 

Globe Centre AOA  -    14,315 

Nestlé Mexico, S.A. De C.V.  108  98 

Nestlé Brazil Limited  1,408  1,897 

Nestec S.A.  1,706  1,232 

Nestlé Dubai Manufacturing LLC  -    3,367 

P.T. Nestlé Indonesia  37  1,360 

Nestlé Japan Limited  924  1,109 

Nestlé Pakistan Limited  139  127 

Nestlé ROH (Thailand) Limited  67  66 

713,686 748,650
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23                Related Party Disclosure 

23.1 Transactions with Related Companies  

Name of the Company
Nature of the 
Relationship

Nature of the                                      
Transactions

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

CPW Phillipines Inc Affiliates Imports / Re-Export  (37,074)  (35,701)

Globe Center AOA Affiliates IT Service Charges  (235,173)  (218,082)

LOTTE - Nestlé Korea Co Ltd Affiliates Imports  (13,200)  -   

Nestec S.A Affiliates
Recoveries  82  -   

Service Charges  (2,780)  (3,349)

Nestlé (Png) Limited Affiliates Exports  11,591  20,254 

Nestlé (Thai) Limited Affiliates
Exports  -    6,025 

Imports / Re-Export  (24,834)  (28,868)

Nestlé Asean (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Affiliates Re-Export  (12,110)  (15,602)

Nestlé Australia Limited Affiliates
Exports  43,495  76,721 

Imports / Re-Export  (66,291)  (76,630)

Nestlé Bangladesh Limited Affiliates
Exports  8,883  -   

Recoveries  263  -   

Nestlé Brazil Limited Affiliates Imports  (428)  (1,337)

Nestlé Business Service AOA Inc Affiliates Service Charges  (851)  (1,253)

Nestlé Caribbean Affiliates Exports  15,994  19,532 

Nestlé Deutschland AG Affiliates Technical   (7,196)  (3,934)

Nestlé Dubai Manufacturing LLC Affiliates Imports  (11,216)  (10,015)

Nestlé France Affiliates Technical   (9,788)  (7,828)

Nestlé Ghana Limited Affiliates Recoveries  3,124  -   

Nestlé India Limited Affiliates

Exports  313,132  305,365 

Recoveries  6,227  -   

Technical / Imports / Serv. Chg  (134,027)  (139,102)

Nestlé Jamaica Limited Affiliates Exports  116,256  125,053 

Nestlé Japan Limited Affiliates
Exports  10,821  52,718 

Imports  (2,091)  (5,520)
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Name of the Company
Nature of the 
Relationship

Nature of the                                      
Transactions

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Nestlé Korea Limited Affiliates
Exports  -    432 

Imports  -    (13,996)

Nestlé Maghreb S.A. Affiliates RSUP  (2,843)  -   

Nestlé Manufacturing (Malaysia) Sdn 
Bhd

Affiliates

Exports  -    3,500 

Recoveries  6,293  -   

Import / Re-Export / Technical  (532,031)  (484,933)

Nestlé Mexico S.A. de C.V. Affiliates Service Charges  -    (248)

Nestlé Middle East FZE Affiliates

Exports  786,532  731,327 

Recoveries  330  -   

Imports  -    (94)

Nestlé Nederlands B.V. Affiliates Imports / Technical  (12,858)  (10,363)

Nestlé Nigeria Affiliates Exports  -    3,575 

Nestlé Operational Services 
Worldwide S.A.

Affiliates Service Charges  (26,119)  (26,027)

Nestlé Pakistan Limited Affiliates Service Charges / Imports  -    (241)

Nestlé Panama S.A. Affiliates Exports  2,956  -   

Nestlé Phillipines Inc Affiliates Imports / Re-Export  (1,096,721)  (999,884)

Nestlé Products Sdn Bhd Affiliates
Imports / Re-Export  (50,073)  (97,495)

Exports  -    121 

Nestlé Purina Petcare Tianjin Ltd. Affiliates Imports  (208)  -   

Nestlé R & D Centre (Pte) Limited Affiliates Technical   (37,972)  (13,676)

Nestlé ROH (Thailand) Limited Affiliates Service Charges  (196)  (135)

Nestlé S.A. Parent
Exports  -    2,231 

Dividend Payment / RSUP  (2,511,740)  (3,190,025)

Nestlé Saudi Arabia Affiliates Exports  -    2,346 

Nestlé Singapore (Pte) Limited Affiliates

Exports  2,707  8,678 

Recoveries  1,494  -   

Imports  (1,467,581)  (1,491,443)
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Name of the Company
Nature of the 
Relationship

Nature of the                                      
Transactions

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Nestlé Suisse S.A. Affiliates
Exports  10,805  -   

Imports  (26,589)  (21,677)

Nestlé Taiwan Limited Affiliates
Exports  31,606  30,637 

Imports  -    (477)

Nestlé Trinidad and Tobago Limited Affiliates Exports  173,520  134,016 

Nestlé UK Limited Affiliates

Exports  71,753  88,422 

Recoveries  483  12 

Service Charges  (488)  -   

Nestlé Waters Marketing Affiliates Imports / Re-Export  (14,756)  (27,843)

Nestrade S.A. Affiliates

Recoveries  8,059  -   

Exports  122,463  132,987 

Imports / Service Charges  (12,938)  (6,761)

Osem UK Limited Affiliates Exports  -    172 

P.T. Nestlé Indonesia Affiliates Imports  (9,607)  (8,006)

San Pellegrino S P A Affiliates Service Charges  (99)  -   

Servcom S.A. Affiliates Service Charges  (2,495)  (402)

Societe des produits Nestlé S.A. Affiliates Technical Assistance Fee  (1,513,875)  (1,317,825)

Transactions with Related Parties are carried out in the ordinary course of the business and were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length 
transactions.

23.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel include all the members of the Board of Directors of the Company having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 
the activities of the Company.

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Short Term Employee Benefits    42,369 40,145

Directors' Fees  835 835

Non Cash Benefits  23,220 34,244

Share Based Payments            28,658 20,299

 95,082 95,52396



Notes to the Financial Statements

Loans to Directors
No loans were given to the Directors during the year.

23.3 Share-based Payments

The Company participates in the Nestlé Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) plan of Nestlé 
S.A. whereby selected employees are granted non-tradable Restricted Stock 
Units with the right to obtain Nestlé S.A. shares or cash equivalents. Restricted 
Stock Units are granted to employees vest, subject to certain conditions, after 
completion of three years. Upon vesting, Nestlé S.A. determines whether shares, 

free of charge or cash equivalent to the value of shares, is to be transferred to 
the employee. The Company has to pay Nestlé S.A. an amount equivalent to the 
value of Nestlé S.A. shares on the date of vesting, delivered to the employee. 
Provisions are made based on estimates, including the Nestlé S.A. share price, 
over the vesting period of three years.

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Number of Shares Granted During the Year  2,255  2,795 

Weighted Average Fair Value of RSU as at Period End  22,582  25,460 

Total Expense Recognised in Profit & Loss  63,768  37,204 

Carrying Amount as at the Reporting Date  83,264  53,315 

There are no related party transactions other than those disclosed in Notes 16, 22, and 23

24                Commitments 

(a) Capital Commitments 
The capital commitment for the year 2015, which has been approved by the Board, but not been contracted for, is Rs. 117 million (2014 - Rs. 189 million).

(b) Lease Commitment 
The land in which the Nestlé Lanka’s factory building is constructed was leased 
out from the Sri Lankan Government. As per the lease agreement, the land in 
Mahayaya Estate was leased for 50 years from 25 March 1981.

The annual amount payable under the lease agreement is Rs. 539,540 from the 
year 2011, as the government has the option to increase the lease payments every 
five years subject to a maximum of 50% of the previous lease rental. From 2016 
onwards, the annual lease commitment will be Rs. 809,310. 
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Non Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments are as follows:

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Not Later Than One Year  809  540 

Later Than One Year and Not Later Than Five Years  3,238  2,158 

Later Than Five Years  8,902  6,474 

 12,949  9,172 

25                Contingent Liabilities 

An Income Tax assessment for Rs 201 million was issued to the Company for the 
years of assessment 2011/12 and 2012/13. A formal appeal to the Commissioner 
General of Inland Revenue has already been lodged, setting out our submissions 
and requesting for withdrawal of the assessment. The Company believes it has a 
strong case.

There are no other material contingent liabilities other than those disclosed above.

26                Events Occurring After the Reporting Date

There were no material events occurring after the reporting date that require 
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements, other than the following;

	An interim dividend of Rs. 34.50 per share amounting to Rs. 1,853,528,474 was 
approved on 23 February 2016 by the Board of Directors and will be paid on 15 
March 2016.

 The Board of Directors has recommended a final dividend of Rs. 30.00 per 
share amounting to Rs. 1,611,763,890 for the year ended 31 December 2015. 
This is to be approved at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 5 May 
2016.

27                Financial Risk Management

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed to a number of financial 
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk (including foreign currency risk and 
interest rate risk) and price risk.

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the establishment and 
oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company’s risk 
management procedures are established to identify and analyse the risks faced 
by the Company, set appropriate risk limits, and to control and monitor risks to 
ensure adherence.

(a) Credit Risk
Credit risk arises when the counterparty may fail to perform its obligation.

The major risk in this regard arises from trade receivables, which are subject to 
credit limits and control and approval procedures to minimise the extent of the 
Company’s financial exposure. Bank guarantees are also obtained to minimise the 
risk further.

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in short term liquid 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

assets, and only with counter parties that have an existing business relationship 
at a global level with Nestlé S.A. or locally with entities classified by Investment 
Grade.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows.

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Trade  Receivables  1,603,110  1,344,807 

Loans to Employees  318,650  306,478 

Amount Due from Related Parties 203,975 304,641

Refundable Deposits and Non Trade Receivables  45,196 48,676 

2,170,931  2,004,602 

Trade  Receivables

Trade Receivables  1,696,151  1,430,152 

Allowance for Trade Receivables  (93,041)  (85,345)

 1,603,110  1,344,807 

The Ageing of Trade as at the reporting date were as:

Not Past Due  1,629,364  1,251,867 

Past Due 1-30 Days  1,083  101,034 

Past Due 31-60 Days  18,713  14,044 

Past Due 61-90 Days  20,737  516 

Past Due 91-120 Days  10,113  2,105 

Past Due More Than 120 Days  16,140  60,586 

Allowance for Trade Receivables  (93,041)  (85,345)

1,603,110  1,344,807 

(b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises when a company encounters difficulties to meet commitments 
associated with liabilities and other payment obligations. The Company’s objective 

is to manage this risk by limiting exposures in the instruments that may be affected 
by liquidity problems and by maintaining sufficient back-up facilities. 

99



The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are as follows:

2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

Less than 6 Months 6 - 12 Months Less than 6 Months 6 - 12 Months

Trade  Payables 2,824,035 12,164  2,501,861 62,946

Other Payables 1,231,458 69,789  1,170,067 68,762

Bank Overdrafts and 
Distributor Finance 
Scheme

448,310 - 205,356 -

4,503,803 81,953 3,877,284 131,708

(c) Market Risk
The Company is exposed to risk from movements in foreign currency exchange 
rates, interest rates and market prices that affect its assets, liabilities and 
anticipated future transactions.

The Company’s objective of market risk management is to manage and control 
market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return 
and / or cost.

(d) Currency Risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that 
are denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the US Dollar (USD), Singapore 
Dollar (SGD) and Euro (EUR).

The exposures are managed within a prudent and systematic hedging policy in 
accordance with the Company’s specific needs. The Company manages its foreign 
currency exposure through use of currency forwards when suitable.

Exposure to Currency Risk 
The Company’s exposure to currency risk as at the reporting date can be summarised as follows:

As at 31 December 2015
Rs.‘000s

2014
Rs.‘000s

EUR USD SGD EUR USD SGD

Trade Receivables  8,471  405,678 -  -    431,385  -   

Trade Payables  (69,817)  (767,935)  (94,209)  (50,661)  (809,588)  (58,298)

Net Statement of Financial Position  (61,345)  (362,257)  (94,209)  (50,661)  (378,203)  (58,298)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The following significant exchange rates are applied during the year:

2015 2014

USD 144.20 131.50

EUR 157.61 159.82

SGD 102.13 99.44

Sensitivity Analysis 

Strengthening / weakening of the EUR/ USD/ SGD against the LKR (Lankan Rupee) 
as at 31 December 2015 would have affected the measurement of the financial 

instruments denominated in foreign currencies, and the increase / decrease of 
profit or loss by the amount shown below.

Strengthening
Profit or Loss

 Rs.‘000s

Weakening
Profit or Loss

Rs.‘000s

31 December 2015

USD (1% movement)  3,623  (3,623)

EUR (7% movement)  4,105  (4,105)

SGD (3% movement)  3,631  (3,631)

31 December 2014

USD (1% movement)  3,782  (3,782)

EUR (7% movement)  3,552  (3,552)

SGD (3% movement)  1,790  (1,790)

(e) Interest rate Risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain an efficient operational interest cost 
structure to minimise the adverse effects of fluctuating interest rates.

(f) Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that 
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level 1 : Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical 
instrument.  
  
Level 2 : Valuation techniques based on observable inputs.   

Level 3 : Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs.

101



Accounting Classifications and Fair Values

The following table shows the carrying amount and the fair value of financial 
assets and liabilities, including their values in the fair value hierarchy. It does not 

include the fair value information for financial assets and liabilities not measured at 
fair value, if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Held for  
Trading

Rs.‘000s

Held to 
Maturity
Rs.‘000s

Loans and 
Receivables

Rs.‘000s

Available 
for Sale

Rs.‘000s

Other 
Financial 

Liabilities
Rs.‘000s

Total
Rs.‘000s

As at 31 December 2015

Financial Assets Not Measured at 
Fair Value

Trade and Other Receivables  -  -    2,107,037  -    -    2,107,037 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -  -    867,563  -    -    867,563 

 -  -    2,974,600  -    -    2,974,600 

Financial Liabilities Not Measured 
at Fair Value

Trade and Other Payables  -  -  -  -  4,137,446  4,137,446 

Bank Overdrafts and Distributor 
Finance Scheme

 -  -  -  -  448,310  448,310 

 -  -  -  -  4,585,756  4,585,756 

As at 31 December 2014

Financial Assets Not Measured at 
Fair Value

Trade and Other Receivables  -  -    1,816,426  -    -  1,816,426 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -  -    282,517  -    -  282,517 

 -  -    2,098,943  -    -  2,098,943 

Financial Liabilities Not Measured 
at Fair Value

Trade and Other Payables  -  -    -    -    3,803,742  3,803,742 

Bank Overdrafts and Distributor 
Finance Scheme

 -  -    -    -    205,356  205,356 

 -  -    -    -    4,008,098  4,008,098 
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Rs.‘000s

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

As at 31 December 2015

Financial Liabilities  Measured at Fair Value

Forward Exchange Contracts  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   

As at 31 December 2015

Financial Liabilities  Measured at Fair Value

Forward Exchange Contracts -  894  -    894 

-  894  -    894 

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents and balances with banks 
approximate the fair value, as these are short term in nature.

Trade and Other Receivables
Trade and other receivables are expected to be settled within one year of the 
reporting date, hence the discounting impact would be immaterial. Therefore the 
carrying amount approximates the fair value as at the reporting date.

Trade and Other Payables
Trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year of the 
reporting date, hence the discounting impact would be immaterial. Therefore the 
carrying amount approximates the fair value as at the reporting date.

30                Directors’ Responsibility 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement is given in page 44 of this annual report.
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Value Added Statement

2015
Rs.'000s

2014
Rs.'000s

Revenue 35,854,802 32,902,885

Bought Out Goods and Services (23,419,041) (21,260,965)

Value Added 12,435,761 11,641,920

Rs.'000s % Rs.'000s %

To Government as Taxes / Duties  6,077,400 48.9  5,139,249  44.1 

To Employees as Remuneration and Other Benefits  2,089,608 16.8  1,980,187  17.0 

To Lenders as Interest  30,580 0.2  26,358  0.3 

To Shareholders as Dividends  3,465,292 27.9  3,680,194  31.6 

Retained with Business (Including Depreciation)  772,881 6.2  815,932  7.0 

 12,435,761 100.0  11,641,920 100.0

Analysis of Value 
Addition 2015

Analysis of Value 
Addition 2014

To Government as Taxes / Duties

To Employees as Remuneration

To Lenders as Interest

To Shareholders as Dividends

Retained with Business (Including Depreciation)

6.2%

48.9%27.9%

16.8%

0.2%

7.0%

44.1%31.6%

17.0%

0.3%
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Ten Year Summary

2006
Rs.'000s

2007
Rs.'000s

2008
Rs.'000s

2009
Rs.'000s

2010
Rs.'000s

2011
Rs.'000s

2012
Rs.'000s

2013
Rs.'000s

2014
Rs.'000s

2015
Rs.'000s

Statement of  
comprehensive 
Income

Net Revenue 14,128,658 16,255,216 19,111,985 19,427,135 21,422,984 25,575,780 28,571,488 30,913,413 32,902,885 35,854,802 

Profit before tax  2,043,874  2,046,975  2,483,987  2,427,850  2,846,771  3,444,267  3,467,713  4,083,211  4,765,797  5,425,507 

Taxation  (688,988)  (655,383)  (820,894)  (847,535)  (932,052)  (814,497)  (529,146)  (766,466)  (978,904) (1,301,183)

Profit after tax  1,354,886  1,391,592  1,663,093  1,580,315  1,914,719  2,629,770  2,938,567  3,316,745  3,786,893  4,124,324 

Other Comprehensive 
Income / (Expense)

 -    -    -    -    -    -    39,101  30,859  (46,390)  (16,762)

Retained profits / (Loss) 
brought Forward

 35,009  46,758  95,213  146,541  115,091  176,284  254,100  330,799  454,875  515,184 

Super Gain Tax - - - - - - - - - (638,365)

Profit available for 
distribution

 1,389,895  1,438,350  1,758,306  1,726,856  2,029,811  2,806,054  3,231,768  3,678,403  4,195,378  3,984,381 

Interim Dividend  (537,255)  (483,529)  (537,255)  (483,529)  (644,704)  - (1,611,765) (1,719,215) (2,175,881)  -   

Final  Dividend  (805,882)  (859,608) (1,074,510) (1,128,236) (1,208,823) (2,551,953) (1,289,204) (1,504,313) (1,504,313)  -   

Retained Profits carried 
forward

 46,758  95,213  146,541  115,091  176,284  254,100  330,799  454,875  515,184  3,984,381 

105



2006
Rs.'000s

2007
Rs.'000s

2008
Rs.'000s

2009
Rs.'000s

2010
Rs.'000s

2011
Rs.'000s

2012
Rs.'000s

2013
Rs.'000s

2014
Rs.'000s

2015
Rs.'000s

Statement of Financial 
Position

Stated Capital  537,255  537,255  537,255  537,255  537,255  537,255  537,255  537,255  537,255  537,255 

Reserves  852,640  954,821  1,221,051  1,243,327  2,029,811  2,806,054  3,231,768  3,678,403  3,550,673  3,984,381 

Non-Current Liabilities  213,703  206,541  371,650  430,965  522,736  594,713  794,419  929,020  1,155,712  1,221,692 

 1,603,598  1,698,617  2,129,956  2,211,547  3,089,802  3,938,022  4,563,442  5,144,678  5,243,640  5,743,328 

Represented by:

Tangible Fixed Assets  1,263,724  1,809,300  1,780,501  2,057,526  2,796,792  4,591,419  4,892,994  4,810,141  5,414,937  5,621,039 

Intangible Assets  -    145,072  111,594  78,116  44,637  11,159  -    -    -   

Current Assets  2,441,960  3,196,200  3,157,602  3,238,362  3,673,888  4,290,657  3,739,135  5,719,972  5,394,992  6,501,008 

Less: Current Liabilities  (2,102,086)  (3,306,883)  (2,953,219)  (3,195,935)  (3,458,994)  (4,988,691)  (4,079,847)  (5,385,435)  (5,566,289)  (6,378,719)

Net Current Assets  339,874  (110,683)  204,383  42,427  214,894  (698,034)  (340,712)  334,537  (171,297)  122,289 

 1,603,598  1,698,617  2,129,956  2,211,547  3,089,802  3,938,022  4,563,442  5,144,678  5,243,640  5,743,328 

Average Market price 
per share (Rs)

180.15 262.85 278.75 345.64 611.42  764.38  1,154.07  1,978.75  2,105.00  2,049.50 

Earnings per Share (Rs) 25.22 25.90 30.96 29.41  35.64  48.95  54.70  61.74  70.49  76.77 

Dividend paid / 
proposed  (Rs. 000s) 

1,343,137 1,343,137  1,611,764  1,611,764  1,853,528  2,551,959  2,901,175  3,223,528  3,680,194  3,465,292 

Dividend Per Share (Rs.) 25.00 25.00 30.00 30.00 34.50 47.50 54.00 60.00 68.50 64.50

Ten Year Summary
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Analysis of Shareholders According to the Number of Shares Held as at 31 December 2015 

Resident Non-resident Total

Number of Shares Held
Number of 

Shareholders
Number of 

Shares %
Number of 

Shareholders
Number of 

Shares %
Number of 

Shareholders
Number of 

Shares %

1 to 1000 Shares  4,885  711,142 1.32 57  14,120 0.03 4942  725,262 1.35

1001 to 10,000 Shares  389  1,023,482 1.90 26  117,374 0.22 415  1,140,856 2.12

10,001 to 100,000 Shares  33  772,411 1.44 14  498,607 0.93 47  1,271,018 2.37

100,001 to 1000,000 Shares  1  110,000 0.20 7  1,684,581 3.14 8  1,794,581 3.34

Over 1,000,000 Shares 0 0 0.00 1  48,793,746 90.82 1  48,793,746 90.82

 5,308  2,617,035 4.86 105  51,108,428 95.14  5,413  53,725,463 100

Categories of Shareholders
Number of 

Shareholders Number of Shares

Individual  5,254  2,380,740 

Institutional  159  51,344,723 

 5,413  53,725,463 

High / Low Market Prices

Highest Market Value Rs. 2,390.00 

Lowest Market Value  Rs. 1,960.40 

Market Value as at 31 December 2015 Rs. 2,049.50

Public Holding as at 31 December 2015 9.18%

Market capitalisation of the Public Holding as at 31 December 2015 : Rs.10,105,504 (Rs‘000s)

 

Share Information
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List of 20 Major Shareholders Based on the Number of Shares Held as at 31 December 2015

No. Names % Shares as at 2015 Shares as at 2014

1 Nestlé S.A. 90.82 48,793,746  48,793,746 

2 HSBC Int'l Nom Ltd - SSBT - Wasatch Frontier Emerging Small 
Countries Fund

0.81 436,962  435,331 

3 HSBC Int'l Nom Ltd - State Street London C/O SSBT - Fundsmith 
Emerging Equities Trust PLC

0.64 343,558  -   

4 RBC Investor Services Bank-Coeli Sicav I-Frontier Markets Fund 0.44  238,500  304,500 

5 Harnam Neesha
J.K.P. Singh
Jasbinderjit Kaur Piara

0.37 200,000  200,000 

6 HSBC In't Nom Ltd - Msip - Coupland Cardiff Fund PLC-CC Asian 
Evolution Fund

0.36 195,961  521,631 

7 HSBC International Nominees Ltd - SSBT - Deustche Bank AG 
Singapore A/C 01

0.29 155,600  155,600 

8 HSBC Int'l Nom Ltd - SSBT - Julius Baer Multipartner - WMP EM 
Established Leaders Fund

0.21 114,000  78,435 

9 Estate of late Radhakrishnan (Deceased) Mariapillai 0.20 110,000  110,000 

10 Employees Provident Fund 0.19 100,000  100,000 

11 CB NY S/A Wasatch Frontier Emerging Small Countries CIT Fund 0.16 85,650  49,213 

12 HSBC Intl Nom Ltd - UBS AG Singapore Branch (Ex SBC) 0.16 85,000  85,000 

13 AIA Insurance Lanka PLC A/C No.07 0.10 55,975  53,975 

14 HSBC Int'l Nom Ltd - JPMCB - T.Rowe Price Institutional Frontier 
Markets Equity Fund 

0.10 54,915  -   

15 Colombo Investment Trust PLC 0.09 50,904  50,904 

16 Bandaranayake
Jayampathi Divale

0.08 44,100  44,100 

17 Hirdaramani
Anil Kumar Lalchand

0.08  42,500  42,500 

18 Merchant
Asha Ajay

0.08  41,000  39,600 

19 Singh
Jasbinderjit Kaur Piara

0.07 40,100  34,700 

20 Mellon Bank N.A. - Commonwealth Pen Pub School 0.07 35,905  35,905 
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Creating Shared Value 
Summary Report

Creating Shared Value –
Going Beyond Corporate Social Responsibility 

Creating
Shared Value

Compliance

Nutrition, water,
rural development,
our focus areas

Protect the futureSustainability

Laws, business principles,
codes of conduct

At Nestlé, our view of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has evolved into 
‘Creating Shared Value’ (CSV). 

The concept of CSV states that for a company to be successful over time and 
create value for shareholders, it must also create value for society. 

The CSV model focuses on creating ‘joint benefit’ or ‘shared value’ for both our 
shareholders and society at every stage of our business. It encourages businesses 
to create economic and social value simultaneously by focusing on the social 
issues that they are uniquely capable of addressing. 

Accordingly, we have focused our CSV efforts and investments in three areas – 
nutrition, water and rural development - as they are core to our business strategy 
and vital to the welfare of the local community. We believe that these areas have 
the greatest potential for ‘joint benefit’ for both society and Nestlé. 

Nutrition: Food and nutrition are the basis of health and of our business – it is the 
reason why we exist.

Water: The ongoing quality and availability of water is vital to life, the production 
of food and for our operations.

Rural Development: The overall wellbeing of farmers, rural communities, 
workers, small entrepreneurs and suppliers is intrinsic to the continuance of our 
business in the future.

For Nestlé, CSV has become the way we do business. The saying goes ‘if a man 
is hungry, don’t give him a fish, give him a rod’. In the same way, we believe 
that it is not enough to feed a man for a day, but that it is far more practical and 
beneficial to empower communities to be able to generate their own income in a 
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sustainable and independent manner. By providing communities with the means 
and education to develop their own livelihoods, we make it possible for them to 
not only enhance the quality of their lives, but also those of the future generations 
to come. 

Nutrition 

Our products are not just about great taste. Through our world renowned R&D we 
ensure that the latest technology, processes and thinking are incorporated in the 
development of our products.

Nestlé has the largest R&D network of any food company in the world, with a 
heritage of 150 years of research, development and scientific know-how. The 
Nestlé Research Centre is widely recognised across the globe as one of the 
world's leading research institutions in food, nutrition and life sciences.

To learn more about our passion for nutrition, read pages 8 to 11.

Rural Development 

Nestlé’s approach to rural development aims at enhancing the lives of rural farmers 
and communities. Our efforts are directed at both farm and community level to 
provide training and technical assistance and improve quality and productivity.   

We support close to 25,000 farmers with our procurement of fresh milk and 
coconut. Our direct payment to local farmers for these raw materials came to 
Rs. 6 billion in 2015. 

Dairy

As Sri Lanka's largest private buyer of fresh milk, we play a big role in helping to 
develop the local dairy industry and increase local fresh milk production. 

Because Sri Lanka’s dairy industry is still an emerging one, where farmers do not 
produce enough milk to meet consumer demand, we have been working closely 
with the authorities since the early 1980’s to help develop it. Our aim is to not only 
increase the supply and quality of milk but also to provide local farmers a livelihood 
that is profitable and sustainable. 

Currently working with close to 20,000 dairy farmers, we offer them regular training 
and development programmes on a range of technical topics and best practices, 
including cattle feeding and breeding and animal health and farm management. 

In addition to donating vital equipment and medicine, we also provide financial 
assistance to develop dairy farms and promote artificial insemination for breeding 
high-yield cows.
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We have also constructed a number of chilling centres and milk collection 
points across the country. These facilities help farmers keep their milk fresh at a 
temperature of 4 degrees Celsius. Previously, facilities for storing fresh milk in the 
area were inadequate, resulting in low quality and wastage. 

Each Nestlé chilling centre is equipped with testing equipment and farmers are 
paid for the quality of milk they provide – the higher the quality, the higher the 
price they receive. 

The chilling centres and collection points are managed by people we appoint from 
the area, ensuring that it is not only the dairy farmers who gain a livelihood from 
these facilities.  

When the civil conflict ended in 2009, we were the first to begin large scale 
development of the dairy industry in the North and East provinces. Our determined 
efforts to train farmers and help them produce more milk of better quality has 
contributed to the economic prosperity of these areas. 

Significant mentions are the chilling centres opened by us in Jaffna, Kilinochchi, 
Mallavi and Oddusudan, which were the first ever to be established in those areas 
in 30 years. 

In 2015, we contributed Rs. 3.6 billion as direct payment to local farmers for milk 
to manufacture our products like Nespray, Milo and Milkmaid. We also spent more 
than Rs. 500 million on crucial infrastructure and resources to operate our milk 
chilling centres across the island, ensure efficient transportation of fresh milk, and 
maintain high quality control.  

We remain committed to contributing to the rural economy, and providing our 
Sri Lankan consumers a portfolio of high quality products made with the goodness 
of local fresh milk. 

Coconut

We are one of the largest exporters of coconut milk powder in the world. Our 
Maggi Coconut Milk Powder, which is manufactured only at our Kurunegala 
factory, is sold by Nestlé worldwide. 

We purchase coconuts indirectly from 5,400 rural farming families through our 
suppliers, offering them a sustainable source of income. In line with our standard 
supply chain model, we help local suppliers improve their quality standards and 
empower farmers to grow crops that benefit them. 

We contributed Rs. 2.6 billion to the coconut industry in 2015 as payment for 
procuring fresh coconuts for our products. 

Creating Shared Value 
Summary Report

111



Water and Environmental Sustainability 

We want our products to not only be tastier and healthier, but also better for 
the environment throughout the value chain. We are committed to improve our 
environmental performance, year on year. 
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Reducing our consumption of water by

39%
from 2008 to 2015

(per tonne of production)

Reducing our consumption of energy by

40%
from 2008 to 2015
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Achieving zero water discharge

Our Kurunegala factory, which manufactures more than 90% of the Nestlé 
products sold in Sri Lanka, opened a Reverse Osmosis (RO) plant in 2015 to help 
us become a 'zero water discharge' factory. 

Currently all our wastewater is treated and purified before being released into 
the environment. However ‘zero water discharge’ means that all our industrial 
wastewater will not only be treated and purified but also recycled so it can be used 
again in our operations.

Costing approximately Rs. 100 million, the RO plant helps us purify wastewater to 
drinking water and also helps improve the efficiency of our boilers, as we will not 
use as much water as in the past. It will also improve the safety of our boilers by 
reducing the use of chemicals and eliminating the risk of contamination.  

The RO plant reduces our factory’s use of water by 5571 m3 per year, equivalent 
to the amount of water 35 households would use over 12 months.  

It also helps us save 2,946 GJ of energy every year in our operations, equivalent to 
the amount of electricity 1,100 households would use over 12 months. 
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Expanding our UPS system to save energy 

As with any other manufacturing entity, our factory is highly dependent on 
continuous supply of electricity to continually operate the machinery. As a food 
and beverage company that adheres to strict quality guidelines, failure in power 
supply would impact the manufacturing process adversely - any product that does 
not follow a normal manufacturing process would have to be disposed of, wasting 
a large amount of our resources. 

To ensure that our machines are able to run continuously even during a power 
failure, we began using two 1,250 KVA diesel power generators full time. However, 
the cost of generating in-house electricity (running the generators) full time was 
higher than the cost of electricity supplied by the CEB.

To address this, we installed a centralised UPS (uninterrupted power supply) 
system, similar to the emergency power systems used for computers. The 
system allows our machines to work uninterrupted even during a power failure for 
a limited time, buying us enough time to switch to the diesel generators. 

In 2015 we expanded our UPS system, allowing us to reduce our diesel 
consumption by 864,000 litres a year, energy consumption by 2.5% a year, CO2 

emissions by 1,800 tonnes a year, and energy costs by Rs. 45 million a year. 

Pre-engineered green distribution centre building design 

We redesigned our Distribution Center (DC) so it would be more environmentally 
friendly, helping use less natural resources for our operations. The DC helped us 
reduce our costs by Rs. 40 million by offering the following unique features – 

	Powered using only solar energy (215 solar cells), helping us save the same 
amount of energy 330 households would use in a year 

	Illuminated 100% by 40 sky lights, helping us save the same amount of energy 
125 households would use in a year 

	Ventilated only via natural ventilators, helping us save the same amount of 
energy 228 households would use in a year 

	The three initiatives above helped us reduce CO2 emissions by 47 tonnes and 
diesel consumption by 20%

Our green distribution centre won us a gold rating in 2015 by the Green Building 
Council of Sri Lanka.

Creating Shared Value 
Summary Report
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Enhancing Lives 
for 150 Years

Nestlé is full of stories; of people, 
of enhancing lives, of making a 
difference.

Meet some of the people we have 
touched through our business. 
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“Nestlé was the first to begin 
buying milk from us after the 
war. They also helped us by 
teaching us how to develop our 
business. Thanks to Nestlé, I 
have a flourishing milk business 
today that my family and I earn a 
good livelihood from." 

Thampaiyah Srikamalanathan
Dairy farmer 

Kumulamunai
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“My brother Madhawa and I, 
and our father before us, have 
been working with Nestlé 
for over 45 years. Nestlé has 
always supported us and helped 
us during our difficult times. 
The 2004 tsunami destroyed 
our building and stocks but 
Nestlé was gracious enough to 
reimburse 70% of the damaged 
inventory. Our yearly turnover is 
half a billion rupees today thanks 
to Nestlé, and we couldn't be 
more grateful for everything 
they have done for us.”

Manuja De Silva 
Distributor 

Owner of EM. EM. Agencies
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“It was Nestlé who approached 
us four years ago and suggested 
we venture into the coconut 
milk industry. Our business has 
thrived since then, with Nestlé 
procuring coconut milk from us 
every day. With their advice and 
support, we have grown our 
business and empowered the 
livelihoods of the people in the 
area by giving them employment 
opportunities.”

Oshada Ranatunga
Supplier 

Director of RMP Coconut 
Products Pvt Ltd
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“I trust Nestlé as it meets every 
one of my family’s nutritional 
needs with products like Milo, 
Nestomalt, Nespray and Maggi. 
As a mother, I find their products 
very useful and convenient and 
my children love the taste!”

Rumeshi Rajapaksha 
Consumer
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“I’ve been working at Nestlé 
for the past 10 years, but my 
affiliation with the company 
started long before as my Dad 
worked for Nestlé for almost 25 
years. I’ve literally grown up with 
the company and its products so 
it was a dream come true when 
I got the opportunity to work 
here, and my dad was so proud.

I never imagined that I would 
meet my husband at Nestlé too! 
Nestlé is a big part of my life in 
so many ways. It has not only 
given me a rewarding career but 
has also been an inspiration to 
people very special to me; My 
father – my first love, and my 
husband – my life partner.”

Dilshani Abayasekara 
Employee

Management Accounting 
Specialist
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“I joined Nestlé Lanka in 1984. 
I have experienced the most 
inspirational and eventful 30 
years of my life since the 
days I helped start up our 
manufacturing facility in the 
Kurunegala factory. Nestlé 
is my second home. Not 
only did Nestlé support my 
professional growth both locally 
and internationally, but also 
encouraged my personal growth.

As a retiree now, I must say that 
there isn’t a single day that goes 
by without reminiscing over the 
memories at the Kurunegala 
factory; all the great work we did 
and the challenges we overcame 
to make Nestlé Lanka what it 
is today. I’m deeply proud to 
have been a part of this great 
company.” 

Bandarathilaka Tennakoon 
Retired Employee 

Former Production Manager 

120



“Nestlé is my home away from 
home. I have been with the 
company for 33 years and am 
very happy to have made the 
decision to work here. I have 
witnessed the significant role 
we played in uplifting the lives 
of dairy farmers and am proud 
to have led the team that 
pioneered fresh milk collection 
in the North and East districts 
after the civil war ended.

I feel connected to the company 
and its purpose. Every night I 
look forward to the following day 
to go back to work and do what 
we do best; make a difference.” 

Asoka Kuruppu 
Employee

Agricultural Services Manager
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Fifth (35) Annual General 
Meeting of Nestlé Lanka PLC will be held at the Sri Lanka 
Foundation Institute, 100, Padanama Mawatha, Independence 
Square, Colombo 07, on Thursday, 5 May 2016 at 10.00 am for the 
following purposes:

Agenda

1. To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Board 
of Directors on the Affairs of the Company, Independent 
Auditor’s Report and the audited Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31 December 2015.

2. To approve a Final Dividend for the year ended 31 December 
2015 as proposed by the Directors

3. To re-elect Shobinder Duggal as Director, who retires by 
rotation in terms of Article 56, 57 and 58 of the Articles of 
Association.

4. To re-elect Ranjan Seevaratnam as Director, who is over the 
age of 70 years and retires at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting in terms of Section 210 of the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007, by passing the following ordinary resolution in terms 
of Section 211 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007:

 “Resolved that Ranjan Seevaratnam, who is over the age 
of 70 years, be and is hereby re-elected as a Director of the 
Company. It is hereby resolved and declared that the age limit 
of 70 years referred to in Section 210 of the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007 shall not apply to said Director”

5. To reappoint the auditors M/s. KPMG and to authorise the 
Directors to determine their remuneration. 

By Order of the Board.
NESTLÉ LANKA PLC.

Keerthi Pathiraja
Company Secretary

23 February 2016

Note:

1. A member, entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting, is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him / 
her.

2. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. A form of proxy accompanies this notice.

4. Shareholders attending the meeting are requested to complete 
the Attendance Form as instructed, and hand over the same at 
the entrance to the meeting hall for registration.

5. Shareholders / proxy holders are requested to bring their 
National Identity Cards for the purpose of identification. 

6. No parcels and other belongings will be allowed inside the 
meeting hall. 

7. Only the shareholder will be permitted to enter the meeting 
hall. Shareholders are kindly requested to refrain from bringing 
children in order to avoid any inconvenience. 

8. Kindly note that no complimentary gift parcels will be issued at 
the AGM.
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Nestlé Lanka PLC

I / We......……………………………………………….......…..........………............................................. of …...……………………...........………

……………………..........…………………………………............................ being a member/ members of the above named Company hereby 

appoint ………………………………………………………………........................................................... of ................................……………......

......................................................................................................….…..... or failing ……………………..............…………................................

.......................................................….................… of ...............................………………………..…............................................................... or 

failing ........………….......…………………………………………………………………...……………...… as my / our proxy to represent me / us 

and vote for me/us on my / our behalf at the Thirty Fifth Annual  General Meeting to be held on Thursday, 5 May 2016 at 10.00 a.m. and at 

any adjournment thereof.

Signed on this: …………………....................….….. day of …………………………...........……. 2016.     

…………………………….................….
Signature

Instructions as to the completion

1. Kindly perfect the form of proxy legibly by filling in your full 
name and address in the spaces provided, along with the date 
and your signature.

2. If the proxy form is signed by an Attorney, the related Power 
of Attorney should also accompany the completed form for 
registration, if it has not been already registered with the 
Company.

3. If the shareholder is a Company or Corporate Body, the proxy 
form should be executed under its common seal in accordance 
with its Articles of Association or Constitution.

4. The completed form of proxy should be deposited at the 
Office of the Registrars of the Company, M/s. SSP Corporate 
Services (Pvt) Ltd., at 101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 03, not 
less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Annual 
General Meeting.

Form of Proxy
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fmrl,dis fmdaruh

fkiaf,a ,xld mSt,aiS

..............................................................................................................................................................................................jk

uu$wm .......................………………………..........................................................................................................…hk ,smskfha mÈxÑ

w;r by; ku i`oyka iud.fï idudðlfhl= $ idudðlhska fjñ $ jkafkuq' fuu m;%h u.ska 

..............................................……………………….............……………………........................................................................

hk ,smskfhys mÈxÑs .......................................................................................................................................................................

………..........................................................................................…...............................................................……..……...…hk wh

wmf.a fmrl,dislre $ fmrl,dislrejka f,i kïlrk w;r ud $ wm ksfhdackh lrñka ud $ wm fjkqfjka 2016 uehs 5 jeks Èk meje;afjk 

;siamia jeks jd¾Isl uyd iuq¿jg iyNd.sù Pkaoh m%ldY lsÍug iy bÈßfha§ ´kEu wjia:djl ud $ wm ksfhdackh lrñka Pkaoh m%ldY lsÍug 

n,h mjrñ'

........................................................   .…………………………...................

w;aik              Èkh 

iïmQ¾K lsÍu i|yd Wmfoiaa  

1. lreKdlr meyeÈ,s wl=ßka kshñ; mßÈ ysia;ekaj, Tnf.a iïmQ¾K 
ku, ,smskh iuÕ Èkh iy Tnf.a w;aik o fhdod fuu fmrl,dis 
fmdaruh iïmQ¾K lr tjkak'    

2. fmrl,dis fmdaruh wefgda¾ks n,lrefjl= úiska w;aika lrk úgl§ 
wod< wefgda¾ks n,m;%h iud.u iu`. ±kgu;a ,shdmÈxÑ lr 
fkdue;s kï iïmQ¾K l< fmrl,dis fmdaruh iu`. tu n,m;%h 
iud.fï ,shdmÈxÑh i|yd fhduq l< hq;=h'  

3. fldgia ysñhd iud.ula fyda wdh;ksl jHqyhla kï fmrl,dis m;%h 
tu iud.fï jHjia:djg wkql+,j tys fmdÿ uqødj hgf;a w;aika 
;eìh hq;=h'

4. fmrl,disysñfhl= m;alsÍu i`oyd iïmQ¾K lrk ,o fmrl,dis 
fmdaruh wju jYfhka uyd iNd /iaùu meje;aùug meh 48lg 
fmr, tia' tia' mS' fldamf¾Ü i¾úiia ^mqoa'& iud.u, wxl: 101, 
we;=,; u,a mdr, fld<U 03 hk ,smskfhys msysgd we;s iud.fï 
frðiagd¾jrekaf.a ld¾hd,hg Ndr fokak.
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gjpy; gpujpepjpia epakpf;Fk; gbtk;

ne];Ny yq;fh gPvy;rp

Nkw;Fwpg;gpl;l epWtdj;jpy; gq;Fjhuuhf / gq;Fjhuh;fshf cs;s 

................................................................................................................vd;w Kfthpiar; Nrh;e;j .............................................

............................................................................ Mfpa ehd; / ehk; ..........................................................................................

...................... vd;w Kfthpiar; Nrh;e;j .............................................................................................................vd;gtiu, jtWk; 

gl;rj;jpy; ............................................................................................................... Vd;w Kfthpiar; Nrh;e;j ..................................

......................................................................... vd;gtiu> jtWk; gl;rj;jpy; ...................................................................................

............................ vd;w Kfthpiar; Nrh;e;j .............................................................................................. vd;gtiu 2016 Nk 5 md;W 

K.g. 10.00 kzpf;F ,lk;ngwTs;s my;yJ xj;jpitf;fg;gLk; jpfjpapy; ,lk;ngwTs;s Kg;gj;J Ie;jhtJ tUlhe;j nghJf; $l;lj;jpy; vdJ / 

vq;fsJ rhh;gpy; r%fkspj;J vdJ / vq;fsJ rhh;gpy; thf;fspg;gjw;Fhpa gjpy; gpujpepjpahf epakpf;fpd;Nwhk;.

ifnahg;gkplg;gl;l jpfjp:...........................................................................................Mk; jpfjp 2016

........................................................
ifnahg;gk;

,jidg; G+h;j;jp nra;tjw;fhd mwpTWj;jy;fs;

1. jug;gl;Ls;s ,ilntspfspy; cq;fsJ KOg; ngah; kw;Wk; 

Kfthpiaf; Fwpg;gpl;L> jpfjpAld; cq;fsJ ifnahg;gj;ij 

,lTk;. 

2. mjpfhuKs;s gpujpepjpia epakpf;Fk; gbtk; tof;fwpQh; xUtuhy; 

ifnahg;gk; ,lg;gLk; gl;rj;jpy;> mJ njhlu;ghd ml;Nlhzp jj;Jt 

cWjp Vw;fdNt epWtdj;jpy; gjpT nra;ag;glhJ ,Ue;jhy;> 

mjidAk; gjpT nra;tjw;fhf G+uzg;gLj;jg;gl;l gbtj;Jld; 

mDg;gp itj;jy; Ntz;Lk;.  

3. gq;Fjhuh; xU epWtdkhfNth my;yJ th;j;jf $l;L mikg;ghfNth 

,Uf;Fk; gl;rj;jpy;> chpa mikg;G tpjpfs; my;yJ ahg;G 

tpjpfSf;F mikthf mjd; cj;jpNahfG+h;t epWtd Kj;jpiuapd; 

fPo; mjpfhuKs;s gpujpepjpia epakpf;Fk; tpz;zg;gbtj;ij G+h;j;jp 

nra;Ak; eilKiw epiwNtw;wg;gLjy; Ntz;Lk;.

4. mjpfhuKs;s gpujpepjpia epakpg;gjw;fhd G+uzg;gLj;jg;gl;l 

gbtk; epWtdj;jpd; gjpthsh;fs; mYtyfkhd SSP Nfhh;g;gNul; 
Nrh;tpr]; (gpiuNtl;) ypkpl;nll;> 101> ,d;dh; gpsth; tPjp> nfhOk;G 

03 vd;w Kfthpapy;> tUlhe;j nghJf; $l;lk; ,lk;ngWk; vd 

epakpf;fg;gl;l jpfjpapy; ,Ue;J mjw;F 48 kzpj;jpahyq;fSf;F 

Kd;gjhf itg;Gr; nra;ag;gLjy; Ntz;Lk;.
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Notes:

1. Shareholders are requested to bring this attendance form 
to the Thirty Fifth Annual General Meeting of Nestlé Lanka 
PLC. The meeting will be held at the Sri Lanka Foundation 
Institute, 100, Padanama Mawatha, Independence Square, 
Colombo 7 on Thursday, 5 May 2016 at 10.00 a.m.

2. Shareholders are kindly requested to refrain from bringing 
children in order to avoid any inconvenience.

igyka(

1. fkiaf,a ,xld mSt,aiS iud.fï ;sia miajeks jd¾Isl uyd iuq¿jg 
iyNd.sjkakg meñKSfï§ fuu meñKSfï f,aLkh /f.k 
tk fuka fldgia ysñhkaf.ka b,a,d isáuq' 2016 uehs 5 jeks 
n%yiam;skaod osk fmrjre 10.00g fld<U 07 ksoyia p;=ri%fha 
mokï udjf;a msysá Y%S ,xld mokï wdh;kfha§ fuu jd¾Isl uyd 
iuq¿j meje;afõ'

2.  l=vd orejka /f.k tafuka j<lsk fuka fldgia ysñlrejkaf.ka 
ldreKslj b,a,d isáuq'

Fwpg;Gf;fs;:

1. ne];Ny yq;fh gPvy;rp epWtdj;jpd; Kg;gj;jp Ie;jhtJ 

tUlhe;j nghJf; $l;lj;jpw;F ,e;j r%fkspf;Fk; gbtj;ij 

jk;Kld; vLj;JtUkhW gq;Fjhuh;fs; Nfl;fg;gLfpd;wdh;. 

,f;$l;lk; 2016 Nk 5 Mk; jpfjp K.g 10.00 kzpf;F 100, 
gjdk khtj;ij> Rje;jpu rJf;fk;> nfhOk;G 7 vd;w Kfthpapy; 

mike;Js;s =yq;fh gTz;Nl~d; ,d;];bbA+l; epiyaj;jpy; 

,lk;ngwTs;sJ.

2. mnrsfhpaq;fisj; jtph;f;Fk; nghUl;L jkJ gps;isfis 

jk;Kld; $l;b tUtij jtph;j;Jf;nfhs;SkhW gq;Fjhuh;fs; 

jaTnra;J Nfl;Lf;nfhs;sg;gLfpd;wdh;.

Full name of shareholder / fldgia ysñlref.a iïmQ¾K ku / gq;Fjhuhpd; KOg; ngah;: 

. . .…………………………………..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .……………………

Folio no. / m;abre wxlh / Nfhit ,y: 

. . .…………………………………..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .……………………

NIC no. / cd;sl ye÷kqïm;a wxlh / Njmm ,y: 

. . .…………………………………..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .……………………

No. of shares held / ysñldÍ;ajh orK fldgia m%udKh / itj;jpUf;Fk; gq;Ffspd; vz;zpf;if: 

. . .…………………………………..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .……………………

Signature / w;aik / ifnahg;gk;:

. . .…………………………………..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .……………………

Attendance Form / meñKSfï igyka m;%h / r%fkspg;Gg; gbtk;
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Name of Company : Nestlé Lanka PLC

Registered Office and  440, T.B. Jayah Mawatha, Colombo 10, Sri Lanka.
Head Office :  Tel: (+94 11) 2696304, 2697821, 2699991
   Fax: (+94 11) 2699437

   E-mail: info.srilanka@lk.nestle.com 
   Website: www.nestle.lk

Legal Form :  A public quoted company with limited liability, incorporated in
   Sri Lanka on 29 January 1981 and listed on the Main Board of
   the Colombo Stock Exchange

Company Registration PQ20
Number :

Company Secretary : Keerthi Pathiraja

Nestlé Lanka PLC  FSSC 22000: 2010 (Food Safety System Certification)
Certifications :  ISO 14001: 2007 (Environmental Management Systems)
   OHSAS 18001: 2007 (Occupational Health and Safety Management Systems)
   NQMS (Nestlé Quality Management Systems certified by SGS) 
   SLSI Certification for Nespray Full Cream Milk Powder, Cerelac, Nestum and Milkmaid
   Environmental Protection Licence No: 345/2013 R11

Registrars :  M/s. SSP Corporate Services (Pvt) Ltd.
   101, Inner Flower Road, Colombo 3,
   Sri Lanka.

   Tel: 011 2573894, 2576871

Legal Advisors :  D. L. & F. De Saram (Attorneys-at-Law)
   Julius & Creasy (Attorneys-at-Law)

Auditors :  KPMG (Chartered Accountants)

Bankers :  Citibank, N.A.
   Commercial Bank
   Hatton National Bank
   HSBC
   Standard Chartered Bank

Financial Year :  1 January to 31 December

Corporate Information
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